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1. KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT

(a) Background Information

Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA) was established as a State Corporation
under the Kenva Medical Supplies Authority Act of 25% Jlanuary 2013, as a successor
to the Kenwva Moedical Supplies Agency established under the State Corporations Act.
The Act gave KEMSA greater autonomy to run its affairs with clearly defined
functions. The Act also ensured the Authority’s functions were in tandem with the
functions of devolved governments established under Article 176 of the Constitution
and Section 67 of the Health Act, 2017.

The Health Laws {Amendment) Act, no. 5 of 20019 amended the 2013 act to provide for
collaboration between KEMSA and county governments. The Health Laws
{Amendment) Act further provides that national and county health facilities would
refer to KEMSA for their health products and technologies.

(b} Principal Activities

= Core Mandate

The Authority™s Core Mandate as defined in the Act is 1o Procure, Warehouse and D stribube
health products and technelogies to public and other health facilities in Kenya. This is in
support of the broad health sector objectives of improving the health and sccess to proper
healthcare of Kenyan people, KEMSA supply chain activities encompass a range of funclions,
including forecasting and quantification. The Act further provides a framework through
which KEMSA can collaborate and work sith the national referral hospitals and the county
povernments by being the national strategic stock reserve and prescribes essential health

packages.

¥ Wision
"A world class provider of health supply chain solutions that save and transform
lives™.

#  Mission Statement
“To provide reliable, affordable and guality health products, technologies, and supply
chain solutions for improved health care”,
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P Strategic Pillars of the Authority

Fingnciol Stetwardship: Strengthened financial and risk management.

Cutstonmer Facus: Efficiently meet Customer needs for enhanced customer

Intersmal Business Processes anad Systems: Improved internal systems through

Strategic Partnerships: Selection and cooperation with strategic partners for

Leadership and Governanee: Dvonamae and efficient leadership, governanace and

Innowvation and technology: Intelligent deployment of technologies that will play
an important role in making the healthcare supply chain more effective and

|
2.
salisfaction
3,
digital solutions,
4.
atiainment of mulually bencticial poals.
5,
I':I'Iill'ldr",i.'l"l'li"l'l‘l.
f
L'lt'i:' lemt.
] Key Management

I'he .-".ulhumg.."; day-to-day management ks under the following Stroctune
- Board of Directors
- The Chiel Executvede CHElcer

Mlariagemisnt

(d) Fiduciary Management

Fhe key management personnel who held office during the financial vear ended 30
June 2021 and who had direct fiduciary responsibility wers:

(1. | Dr. Jonah Manjari Mwangi

' 2. | Mr. Edward Njoroge
|

ae== —mex

3. | Mr. Fredrick Wanyonyi

(4. , Mr. Charles Juma FEzekiel

| Chief Executive Officer
| A g Chiel Executive Officer M THrector - Operations
| Director- Legal

H'l-r.!"l.' I:urh f’.l:"t; .r:-nu_-lllz
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5. | Mr. Eliud Mureithi Director, Commercial Services
6. | Mr. Douglas Onyancha Head, KEMSA-USATD MCF Program
7. | Ms. Feresa Mute Internal Audit Manager
B Mr, Waiganjo Kararja Drivector Finance & Strategy
%, | Ms.Ebla Mohamed [Hrector Human Resowrce & Administration -
10, | Ms. Caroline Wanjira Ogongi Finance Manager

(¢} Fiduciary Owversight Arrangements

The Board of Directors of the Authority comprises of the Chairperson who s appointed by
the President, the CEQ is appointed by the Board of Directors in concurrence with the Cabinet
Secretary of Health, the Principal Secretary of the Ministry for [Health or her representative,
the Principal Secretary to the Mational Treasury or his representative, a person recruited by
the Council of Governors and appointed by the Cabinet Secretary for Health, three members
who are not public officers with diverse medical supply chain management experience
appointed by the Cabinel Secretary-Ministry of Flealth,

All non-executive directors are idependent of management of the Authority, The Board has
varied and extensive skills in the areas of medical supply chain management and business
mm&emunl.

The Board meets quarterly and has a formal schedule of matters reserved 1o it and which are
attended to as por the board work plan. Board papers are circulated well in advance of the
Board meetings by the secretary (o the board. The key Tunction of the Board i to goide and
control the performance and management of the affairs of the Authority.

This includes the duty to ensure that the functions of KEMSA are carmied out in an efticient,
transparent and cthical manner and that no particular person or body is given undue
preference or subjected 1o any undue disadvantage. The Board considers and advises the
Cabinet Secretary for Health on the development and maintenance of Medical Supply Chain
policy framework and the obpctives of KEMSA, Tt considers and  approves  peneral
performandce targets, both strategic and bosiness, and the annual budgets of the Authority,

The Board has appointed four (1) standing Committees to which it has delegated certain
responsibilibes with the chairpersons of the Committees reporting to the full board
Operations of each commitles are defined in terms of reference approved by the board. The
compasition of the standing Committees during the year is as set out below.

y
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Finance, Strﬁl_ﬁ'gi.r & Development

Commillee

Composition

Human Resources Committee

' Audit and Risk Committee |

' Com position

DHrectors and the CED

Mhain Funclion

Directors .m:l the CEC

Compaosition

Supply L'i:uu_nl'_ummlltee

fﬁmpnsf!lnn

Audit Manager

| Main Function

Review and muonitoring of KEMSA
financial position, accounts, financial
shatements and statutory reports,

Consideration of audit matters arising out
of KEMSA's financial position and
stalements, exammine the recommended
structural developments including 1CT
installations and make appropriate
recommendations

Consideration of human |
resources  and  administration
matters  that require to be
considered by the  Board
including recruitment,
promotions,  discipline  and
welfare of staff.

Frequency of meetings per annum

ATLILERIT

Frequency of mcutirEs FH!!

Main Fum.:llml

Main Function

relating o audit queries,
audit manapgement letters
and quality assurance of
systems  and  processes,
including review  of risk
management,

- {
Owersee QA & control systems,

warehousing & distribution of
medicines, customer services,
co-ordinate updates of EMMS
list, commodities procurement
svstems compliance to the law,
ICT policy, accuracy of stock

Frequem:ﬁf meetings per
annum

Frequency of meetings F-El'

£ almm
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Quarterly or on need basis Quarterly or on need basis .L.Quarterly or on need basis | Quarterly or on need basis

Chairperson Chairperson | Chairperson l Chairperson 1
| Linton Kinyua Nyaga (Current chair) ferry Kiunge Ramadhani| Dr.  Rober Nyarange | Capt, (Rtd) Lawrence Wahome
| = i

Prof. Timothy Waema (exited in April, YNy cxieg) (Crmmnchisl) jS-Siment chair)
| 2021 Dr. Dorothy Aywak [exited in | Joel Onsare Gesuka (exited | Dr, Biblana Njue (exited in

April, 2021) in April, 2021) Agpril, 2021)

| Members Members Members © Members
| S— = |
| Mary Atieno Awino D, Josphat Mbuva Mary Ateno Awino Dr, losphat Mbuva

Terry Ramadhani Dir. Robert Nvarango Capt.  (Rtd) Lawrence Linton MNvaga Kinvua

lsaac Oder (CM) lsaac Oder (CM) oaleme Isaac Oder (CM)

Representative of SCAC Representative of SCAC FOder (M) Representative of SCAC

Edward Nporoge Edward Njporoge ugmeeniativeinf SCAS Edward Njoroge

Evans Cheruiyot Evans Cheruivat Eeward Kjormge Evans Cheruiyot

Teresa Mute

NOTE: . a o

1. CM -Current Member
2. FM- Former Member

6
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() Headquarters

13 Commercial Street, Industrial Area,
POY B 47715 - (0K,

MNAIRCE]

(z) Contacts
]'ll'It-E\hl!r'u.': + 254 M) 3922 (XD
Fmail: mmfesiitkomsion ke
Website www. komsa.co, ke

(h) Bankers

1. NMational Bank of Kenya 2,

Harambee Avenue
P. O, Box 728646 - D000
MAIRDOBIL KENYA

3. Eenyva Commoercial Bank 4,

Industrial Area
PP O3, Boox 180037 - 00506
MAITRUBL KEMNY A

5 Eguity Bank L
Westlands Supreme Centre
PO Booe 75104 - D020
NAIROBI, KENYA

(i) Independent Auditors
Auditor General
Ufice of the Auditor Genereal
Anniversary Towers, University Way,
PO Box 30084 < 00100
MAIROBL KEMNY A

NCBA

Mara Road, Upper Hill
F. L), Baox 4555 - (01N)
NAIROBL KENYA

Co-operative Bank of Kenya
Enterprise Road

F, L), Baox 17928 = (KI50N]
MNAIROBL KENYA

(i) Principal Legal Advisers

The Attorney General

State law olfice, Harambee Avenue
P, O Box 40112 - (02041

NAIROBL KENYA
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2, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

he Directors who served the Aathority during the year were as follows;

ik

Mary Chao Mwadime

DOB 28/09/1956

Nom-Execntive Director

Chairperson - Board of Directors

Effective 300 April 2021

(FhI)-Business Leadership ongoing, MBA,
BCOM-Business Administration J/
Marketing)

Work f'w;'ru:ril.-m:_i': Senior acyuisition & assistang e
spocialist - Consultant with  XLA,  Senior
-|-.|||||'.|h|||1 L5 assimbanoe '.|I-c'|.|.1I|l.t

LISally Liborw SMission, Sepior ACeuisitiomn &
assistanoe *-.pﬁ.:nlh*ﬂ ~  USAIDEast  Alrica,
Matrobi Mession, Chict Supplies Office - Kenyatta
Mativnal Hoespital, 'roject Manager - Kenva
Railways Corporaton, Chiet Supplies Oificer -
Eenya REailways Corporation among other ranks

o

Captain (KAF Rid) Lawrence M. Wahome

IO 210715968

sope=yeenliee Lhrector

Effective 30 April 2021

(Masters, Poblic 'roc. & Swostainable Dewvp,,
MBA-Total Quality Management, Post
Graduate  Cerl-Logistics &  inlernational
Transport, LLM-ublic Procorement Law &
Policy Devip, BB Logistic & Supply Chain
Management, Dip-Purchasing & Supply
[CIPS), DI'-Aeronautical Navigation),

Waork l'xrli'rivrrn': izl ol "-|.|.p;1!1.' L lwmam Lt
LA WP BEwanda Country Offico, |:'-.||.I:..1|:|. Hiad
of Procusement Lot UM WFP Lyl Arab
I".|'|,1|.||‘!|I|. [ '|~L|||Ir}' {HEice, Damascus, Head o
Procurement - N WEFP Afghanistan Country
CHlice, Kabal, Head of Logistics Uinit - Mazar-e-
Sharifl Arca Office, MNortherm region, LINWEP
Afphanistan. Head of Logistics Unit - LN WD,
Burindi Country Office, Bujumbura, Head of
Logistes Uimik - El Fashoer Area Otfice, Northorn
Darfur region, LINWE Sadan Country Cftice,
Hicaad oo I;1ﬂ|nlu". Llmit =Herat Area CHTice
Wistern region, LiNWER ."W.IH|1.1|11=\.:I.||| Country
Ciffiece,  MBMisseon | GIHL‘HLII 1an WSE-Holland,
Kandahar Office, Afghanistan, Mission Flight
Operations - UN WFP, Lokichogio. Flight
Mavigator,/ O Alr Movements - Eenya Adr
Force (Maoi Airbase)
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Termy Kiunge Ramadhani MEBA, CIPTY

COE 1601, 1980

Min-Executive Director

IF April 2021 - 5% BMarch 2022

(Professional Human Resources Sociely of
Famzamia, Professional Membership &
working towards Charfter status, Certified
Prince 2 [Mractitioner, LLB-ongoing, MBA-
HEM, Bachelor of Edocation).

Work Experience; Director, Human Resources
and  Academic  Support,  Dimsctor,  Human
Re=spurcn= and Clobal IZ'lr:,l,.||1i.".1I|-.lr'..|I [ ||.1|1;.l,|-
Lead for Electromic Health Records (EHE) = Aga
Ehan University, Semior Dicector,  Prosidemnt’s
Delivery Uit - Govermenl of Eenva |':.|'r':ll.'\lrL.I|
Leader, Human Resouwrces, BA, Aga Khan
University, Head, Human Resowrces and Acting
L ormpany !'\-.'l.n'l.l.r:r I.3'|::|p|l||un|'::. Livberruataomal,
Human Resources Coordinator Liverpool City
Council Gladstone Howse Secure Children
Home, Liverpool, Youth Programme Officer
Liverpoeo] City Council Gladstone House Secure
Chilidren Home, Liverpioosl

Limbon Myaga Kinyua

RIS 2417, 1%962

Nom=lxecuwtroe [hirector

Effective 36t April 2021

SMember (CPS(K), Member CTAR) MBA, BEA-
Accounting, Dip. Business Management)

Wark ]'.tp-'r'ifnn': Fimancial Condroller LY
Calobal  Dnbernabtional, MNairola, | o Fimamee
e bor = Oean Predght (EAL) Limited, Mombasa
Drirector Fimance, Personne] and Administration
Cheean Fredght (EoA) Limited

Fred Wanyonyi

Dyirector-Legal

Lxecutivre Member

LLE, DM Law, IS Mon=member

Work Expericnce; Company Secretary-MNeoia
Sugar, Advocate-Wetangula & Co. Advocate-
.l MNalo & Co, Advocples, l':'lI!1-i|-"1-ir'!|'|i';'L1
Wetangula & Co Advocates
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L

Mary Alienn Awino

Robert Nyarango DOR 25/12/1964

MO8 300081974 Now=-Executive Ddrector

Now=Executioe DMrector AlL to PS, The National Treasury

Effective 3k April 2021 (MBA, BCOM, Dip-Supply Chain Mngt.
iMember-Association for Healthcare Chality, Part 111)

Certified Processional in Healthcare Quality &

Safety by the Healthcare Quality Certification Work Experience. Currently Deputy director,
Commission, MSC-Clinical Pharmacy, MBA- supply chain management, publi
Strategic Managemaent, [Post Cradoate Dhip.- procurement department, Mational Treasury
Health SF“F“‘H'I Ml‘“i'ﬂi'm‘-'nt]- ]:I‘F"ut}' lisad of procutedmnent LiEuil ."n-HI'I.I:'-II"_'r' ol
Work Ex pﬂfi'..’“':l'."'. Chied  Executive Cficer, Health 1l'l.'|'l HHM o Moy EIH'IHl rj'!."'l'll.ll:lf' head of

procurement unit Ministry of health (2003-
2004}, Head of procurement MNational Assembly
[ 192 19496

Director of Chutpatient Services,  Director  of
Chuality and Safety, Chief Fharmacist /Pharmacy
Ciperations Manager, Clinical  Pharmacist -
Ceetrude’s Children's Hospital

I2r, Jonah Manjari

DOB 07/02/1969

Chief Executive Officer (upto 13 May 2022)

Executive Memiber

(M. Med (ENT, H&N Surgery). (UoN}, MBChB (L1,0.N) MBA-
GLOBAL (LISILT

Work Experience: County Execotve Commuattee Member (Minster of
Hialih Sers B | kol & Nakuri 'f:l:lu:i!:l.. Mol eadial :"huE1|:|1r|I1:|:|.|.|l|.'||I &
Dhistnet Medienl Services Officer erli.-n:r:.' of Medical Semvvices; Thika
lLevel 5 |!-:|'\.|,"-|Iu.|1 o N hph'ulhl Surgein, Mimstry of Health = Cramsen
# Meow Level -3 Hospitals, Tost Greaduate Sendor Hoose Offices
kenvattn Munonal Hospial, Semor Medical Offiwer- Thika Dhsenet
Haspital
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3. MANAGEMENT TEAM

lerry Kiunge Ramadhani MBA, CIPD
Chiet Executive Officer
Effective 130 May 2022

Dir. Jarred Nyakiba
Ag. Uperations [irector
Effective 10Fk Feb 2022

Dir. Evanis [mibuaki
Ag. Programs [Director
Effective 10k Feb 3122

M, John Kabuchs
Ag, Chief Executive Officer
2R Drecember 2027 - 270 May 2022

LIr. Silas Njeru
Ag. Procurement Directon
Effective 10% Feb 20232

M Techa L
Ap. Warchouse Manager
Effective 10th Feb 322

11
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Dir, Simon Wahome CPA James Macharia Hilary Tioni
Ag. Commercial Director Ag. Finance Manager Ag ICT Manager
Effective 10 Feb 2022 Effective 10 Felb 2022 Effective 100 Fel 2022
Fharmacy Specialist, Master of Pharmacy MBA, BEA, CPAK MDY, M55, Security +, BCFE,CFCE,CEH

|
|
I'.'.|III:'|':I|"|1 Koprubss rl.,1l.| ':"\|=1|'|“ Hl_'“n.] LT'.-". 'L:l"."Hl'.":l' :"-1 L hl1'¢ IIII
Ag. HR Manager Ag. Legal Officer Principal Auditor
Effective 1000 Feb 2022 Effective 102 Feb 1122 MOCOM, BCOM, CPAK, (PSP

12
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L. Jomnah "l.'l.'||'|||.||'|
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Charles Juma
Procurement Directos

N ©

Mr, Douglas Oovancha
Head of KEMSA/USATD
MOUF Program

Mr. Edward MNjoroge
Ag Chief Executive
Effective 14" August 2020

2

Mr. Elind Muriithi
|'.|Fh.'r.'||.lz'r Commercial Services

=N

Mr. Walpanjo Earanja CPA, CISA
Director, Finance and Strategy

13
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#a.

Ms, Ebla Mohamaed Mr. Fred Wanyonyi
D¥irector, Human Resource & Admin Director, Legal

iii Al
[, George Walukana Mr. Edward Buluma
Ag Director Commercial Services Ag Director Frocurement
Effective August T4th 2020 Effective August T4th 2020
hls. Teresa Mute Ms. Caroline Anunda (CFA)
Internal Audit Manager Finance Manager

14
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4. CHAIRPERSON'S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors, it gives me great pleasure to present to vou KEMSA's performance
for the financial year ended 300 June 2021,

The Mandate of Kenya Medical Supplies Authority is to Procore, Warehouse and Distribute Medical
Supplies and drugs for prescribed Public Health Programs, the Mational Strategic Stock reserve,
Prescribved Essential Health Packages and National Referral Hospitals. KEMSA manages supply chain of
medical commodities from suppliers to health facilities, and the Authority prides itself in its great
Milestone of last mile delivery. The existing distribution network does delivery on a Tast mile basis to
over 8,000 facilities across all the 47 counties. We undertake door step deliveries to facilities as far as Faza
Island whach is two hours by speed boat from Lamo and Kalacha town in the middle of Chalbi desert in
Nothern Kenya, This distribution network serves the primary healtheare segment and is able (o reach
over 6% of the Kenva population. We have an opportunity to increase this reach through an enhanced
service delivery in the secondary healtheare segment through the referral hospitals and other specialty
facilities,

The Board undertakes to perform its responsibilities diligently and strives to provide the required
leadership to support the Authority’s key strategic pillars of; Financial Stewardship, Customer Focus,
Internal Business Processes and Systems, Strategic Parinerships, Leadership and Governance anchored
in the Strategic Plan 20019-2024. The Strategic Plan will give stimulus to the ongoing mfrastrocture
expansion such as the new modern warehouse and office block as well as redesigned distribution cenlers
in Mombasa and Kisumu.

The Upgrade will involve Automation of the Centers to enable them to provide Warshousing, Picking,
distribution and order processing services. The regional distribution centers is a strategic objective of the
Authority in a bid to take services closer to the customer and improve Order Tumaround time to public
health facilities, KEMSA undertook a Strategic Network Optimizabion assessment of its business and is
implementing the recommendations

Highlights of Business Performanes

EEMSA rovenue reduced by 22% from Kshs 4.698 Billion in FY 2019-2020 to Kshs 3,684 Hillion in FY-
2020-2021, whereas operational expenditure increased by 8% from Kshs 3.035 Billion to Ksh. 3.282
Billion. The decrease in revenue 15 atiributed to reduchion in UHC sales.

KEMSA's performance contract score in FY 2020-2021 as evaluated by the Directorate of Performance
Contracting was 3.0209 (Very Good),

15
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Corporate Governance:

The Board of Directors and the management of the Authority shall endeavor bo see to it that the Authority
continues o execube its mandate, and particularly in playing its role towards improvement of healthcare
in Kenya, in light of the National Government's main pillar of Universal Health Coverage. We will
continue to count on the invaluable support from the Ministry of Health, The National Treasury, the
strategic partners and all our stakeholders.

As part of enhanced corporate governance, KEMSA Board has been fully recomstituted. | welcome the
appointments of Cpt. (KAF Rtd) Lawrence M, Wahome, Terry Kiunge Ramadhani, Linton Nyaga Kinyua
and Robert Nyarango (o the KEMSA Board.

1 wish to appreciate the former KEMSA Board Members; Sen. Kembi Gitura, Mr. Joel Gesuka, Dr. Bibiana
Wue , Dr, Dorothy Aywak and Prof. Timothy Waema whose terms of service ended du ring the financial
vear 2020,/2021 for their invaluable commitment, dedication and contribution to the Au thority.

KEMSA’s Role in the Realization of the Government ‘s Big Four Agenda

KEMSA as a stale corporation is in a unique position to deliver this constitutional promise to the people
of Kenya even as Kenya strives to meets its obligations to the global community. KEMSA's role in UHC
is anchored under its key mandate of procurement, warehousing and distribution of essential medicines
and medical supplies. KEMSA's mandate under UHC is thus to consistently supply quality and
affordable essential medicines and medical supplies.

The need for continuous supply of good quality health products and technologies is paramount to the
success of the UHC agenda. As the Government Health commodity supplier for UHC, KEMSA has the
ability to supply quality, effective and affordable Essential Medicines and Medical Supplies (EMMS) in a
timely manner and meet the increased demand by improved demand predictability.

Covid 19 Pandemic Preparedness

We are going through unprecedented times due to the Coromavirus (COVID-1%). Amidst the
unprecedented global crisis of the pandemic, KEMSA has made elforts to procure Health Products and
Technologies against widespread supply chain disruptions following the effects and response to Covid-
1% in line with our mandate. The Authority has actively been involved in sourcing for Covid-19 {HPTs)
to mitigate the spread of the pandemic for equipping the health workers with requisite assorted personal
protective equipment. As a state corporation, KEMSA has closely collaborated with Ministry of Health
(MOH} and other Government agencies involved in the fight against Covid 19 1o facilitate imely delivery
of products to the doorstep of targeted health facilities, isolation centers, testing, laboratories, surveillance
teams, National Referral Hospitals, The National Command Center, Emergency command Centers
amongst othir institutions invalved in the fight against the pandemic.

16
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Challenges faced by the Authority;

e Debt management remained a big task for the Authority especially the long outstanding debt owed
by County Governments and development partners posing ligquidity risk.

= Change in treatment guidelines creating a big risk of expired items in our stock holding, Transitioning
o the new treatment guidelines took place immediately without considering existing stocks in our
TESOTVE,

Reduced GOK funding for the National Project by the Ministry of Health and The National Treasury
leading to delays in achieving the target completion of the National Commodity Storage Centre.

e Erratic Ordering by the County goviernments due to high debt with the Authority leading to reduced
shelf lives of HPTs in stock and in extreme circumstances expiries.

o The Covid-19 Pandemic that has disrupted the supplies of key HFTs especially from Asia, The LISA
and Earope.

+  USAID/EKEMSA MCP propect came to an end in May 2021 The exit of USAILD has contributed to a

drop in KEMSA fecs, The Project contributed an average of 36% of KEMSA's income ¢ach year.

Megative public perception on KEMS5A as a brand

L

KEMSA Reforms

The Board recognizes that the Authority has had challenges and carrently the Authority is undergoing
reforms on various areas of its operations. The role played by KEMSA in the lives of Kenyans cannot be
over-emphasized. Among the basic essentials for human beings, good health 18 second o none.
Healthcare is therefore pivotal, not only to our developrment, but to our very existence. Therefore, it is
the Board responsibility to provide the required leadership in designing suitable plans and strategies that

will comtribute to high and sustainable socioeconomic development

Thi board is committed o work closely with management, staff and all stakeholders to ensure that all
issues are dealt with and KEMSA's objectives are mel. The Priority areas of reforms ane

*  Financial, Governance & Risk Management
*  Procurement & Regulatory

«  Warchousing & Logistics Management

*  Donations & Tax Exemption Management
« T and Support Systems

KEMSA'S Future Outlook:
The focus of the Board remains singular; to steer the Authority to sustainable stability and resilience, We
have adopted a multi-pronged strategy that includes:
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[ %]

Ensure availability of affordable and quality Essential Health Products and Technologies (HPT)
at all Public Health Facilities in support of UHC and COVID-19 response;

Ensure that we meet an order fill rate of %% and above for all orders placed in support of UHC
and CONVID-1% response,

Ensure that we provide required Essential HFTs at the required time,

Ensure accessibility and reliability of HI'T information and data for National and County
Flanning and decision making in support of UHC and COVII-1Y response.

Ui behalf of the Board, [ wish to thank our strategic pariners, the National and County Governments, for
their continued support of our expansion effort. In addition, the Board recognizes the Auothority's
management and staff for their professionalism, commitment and drive in executing the Authority's
mandate of delivering timely, quality, and efficacious Health Products and Technologies to the last mile
of the Republic of Kenya.

MARY CHAO MWAIDI

CHAIRPERSON - BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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3. REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

KEMSA Act has mandated the Authority to establish mechanisms that ensure efficiency,
eHectiveness and sustainability in carryving out its mandate, To achieve this, the Authority has
rofled out its Strategic Plan 20019 - 2024 which is in its first vear of implementation. The Plan
takes into consideration Kenya's Vision 20505 Medium Term Plan 111 which envisions to provide
“equitable and affordable health care at the highest standards, The plan also takes into
consideration the Sustainable Development Goals No, 3 which seeks to ensure healthy lives and
promote wellbeing for all at all ages thereby thrusting the prominence of citizen's health to the
torefront of responsibilities for all governments.

The management strives to offer excellent corporate performance that ensure delivery of better
services to Kenyans that eases the health burden. KEMSA achieves this through imely delivery
of high quality and affordable Health Products and Technologies to public health institutions.

The Key activities for the Authority are;
Procure

The Authority sources for medical supplies centrally in order to ensure quality and enjoy
eeonomies of scale that emanate from bulk procurement. The procurement ].‘IJ‘I.’.H.‘:'dut'I_'E are
puided by the Public Procurement Regulations,

Warehouse

KEMSA's main supply chain center is in Nairobi. In addition, the authority has 2 regional
distribution centers (Mombasa and Kisumu) and 6 regional warehouses (Kakamega, Eldoret,
Nakuru, Nyeri, Meru and Garissa) across the country to enhance flexibility and quick response
to customers” demand.

Distribute Medical Commaodities and Medical Supplies

The Authority delivers medical supplies to the door step of each health facility in Kenya
consistently and efficiently. In partnership with experienced third-party carriers, KEMSA has set
up a robust distribution network with the capacity to access the last mile of all Public Hospitals,
Health Centers and Dispensaries countrywide.

KEMSA also distributes program commodities which at times are integrated with BEssential
Medicines and Medical Supplies (EMMS). This includes reproductive health commaodities,
nutritional food supplements, TB/ Leprosy and ARV's, This is aimed at reducing distribution
costs and managing medical commeodities within one supply chain resulting in greater reach and
efficiencies.
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Role of KEMSA in Universal Health Coverage

KEMSA 1s the Government health commodities supplier for Universal Health Coverage mandate
with the following roles of implementing the UHC program.

e [ntluence price reduction of Health Products and Technologies through reduced mark
kA

o Consistent supply of quality essential medicines and medical supplies

« Support local manutacturing of essential medicines and medical supplies

* Support the counties to ensure accurate forecasting and quantification

e Meeting counties needs through fulfifling requirements of Essential Drug List

e Monitor stock availability; to meet the growing needs of the counties

*  Advocate order placement and prescription based on generic names

s  Advocate for the enactment of regulations to operationalize PPADA to facilitate
multiple awards for critical tracer commodities

¢ Strengthen engagement with the counties to streamline ordering to avoid erratic
ordering.

lo ensure that this mandate 15 implemented, KEMSA has collaborated with MoH to develop
Specifications for Essential Diagnostic Supplies (SEDS) April 2020 and Specifications for
Essential Medical Supplies (SEMS) were compiled and posted on the KEMSA website, The
Authority ensures that Continuous monitoring of stock availability since it keep the promise as
one stop shop for all medical commaodities thus ensuring that there is a Continuous Supply of
accessible and affordable Health Product Technologies

The Authority endeavors to ensure a Last mile distribution and has put in place mechanisms to
ensure optimum stock availability. This has been made possible by enhancing procurement from
local manutacturers, entering into arrangement with other public and FBOs procuring entities
as stop gap measure to bridge the gap, exploring contract manufacturing both locally and
internationally to improve availability and affordability whilst observing the procurement law,
entering into framework contracts with suppliers.

MNon-Financial Performance

In FY 2020-21, The Average KEMSA Sales Order Fill Rate was 49% and 90% for Program orders
against a target of 20 and 98% respectively.
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The stock availability for KEMSA sales HFT's was low during the vear, occasioned by challenges
in mportation of HFTs and APls due to boarder closure during the height of the COVID-19
pandemic.

During the yvear, UHC {input financing model) roll out was executed to completion

Thie Order turnaround time (OTT)- This is the time taken for KEMSA to tulhl ||i.1!-i}11'L'—JI orders
from date of order receipt at KEMSA to date of order delivery at facility (as per the Proof of
delivery}, The average annual OTT for all Hospitals orders stood at 12,6, davs against the target
of 7 days. The average OTT for Primary Health Facilities orders was 18.1 days against the target
of 10 days.

Financial Performance

KEMSA's total income for the year 2020-2021 was Ksh 3.684 Billion against a target of Ksh 3,558
Billion representing 4% performance above the target.

Total expenditure amounted to Ksh 3.282 Billion which was a 99.8% absorption of the
approved expenditure budget of Kshs 3.285 Billion.

The authority realized a surplus of Ksh 400.70 Million whereas Capital Expenditure was Ksh.
964 Milion. The main capital expenditure cost relates project cost of the ongoing construction of
the National Commaodity Storage Centre which is a Vision 2030 Flagship project.

The Authority received Ksh 125 Million as recurrent grant and none for development grant from
the Ministry of Health, however the authority expects continuous suppaort from the GOK.

KEMSA has pul in place well-defined policies aligned to relevant regulations and best practice,
and ensure alignment across the organisations. We are in the process of renewing some of these
policies and structures to allow for enhanced synergies across the organisation and ensure
accountability at all levels that will lead to effective control of operations within the organisation
The Authority has developed and implemented the Business Continuity Plan whose objective is
o support the continuity of KEMSA's critical business operations in the event of a disaster. The
policy is aimed at ensuring minimal inconveniences and potential disruption to stakeholder's
while ensuring proper crisis management and communication.

Financial year 2020-2021 marked the final vear (Year 53) of the KEMSA MCP contract with LISAID.
The contract ended in May 2021, In the last four years, KEMSA MCP has operated a reliable
supply chain for HIV/AIDS, malaria and family planning MNational programs by providing
sufficient commodities to meet the country needs. Since inception the program has procured
commadities worth USD 454 million keeping the country on track in the achievement ot the
909090 UNTAILD targets.
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By end June 2020, the program was supporting 1.2 million. Since inception in October 2015, the
program has been a main revenue stream for the Authority by earning KEMSA Ksh 34.5 Billion
in reimbursement of Indirect costs, base and award fees.

KEMSA is currently in consultation with USAID for a possible extension/modification of the
contract. USAID has been the main source of tunds in the fight against the HIV/ AIDS pandemic
and Malaria without which, the gains would be lost,

The Authority has experienced challenges in debt collection specifically from the counties and
other various development partners posing liquidity risks to its operation. | appreciate our
continued partnership with the Ministry of Health and county Governments and acknowledge
receipts of long outstanding debt within the financial year.

Strategic Parinerships

KEMSA recognizes the key contribution that its strategic partnerships make to the success of
implementation of its mandate and has entered into various MOUs with various strategic
partners. KEMSA has signed 29 MOUs with 29 County governments. These legal agreements are
in relation to the manner in which the authority provides Health Products and Technologies to
their respective facilities, and how the counties pay for the delivered Health Products and
Technologies. KEMSA also signed 2 MOUSs with single/ private facilities; one with Maisha Poa
CBO and the second with Consolata Hospital in Kyeni,

Other strategic partners during the financial year included;

e LUnited States Agency tor International Development (USATD)-MCP
+ World Bank

# The Global Fund

¢ LUnited Nations International Children’s Emergency Fund (UNICEF)
=  AMEREF Health Africa

« CDIC Kenya

o  Clinton Health Access Initiative (CHAI

» Korea Foundation for International Healthcare (KOFIH)

s Elizabeth Glaser Paediatric AIDS Foundation (EGPAF)

o Other International Donors

o UNFPA
o ASCEND {Accelerating the Sustainable Control and Elimination of Neglected

Tropical Diseases)
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o Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation (BMGF)

o The KAIZEN Institute
o Association of Supply Chain Management {ASCM)

KEMSA Reforms
The Authority is working closely with Ministry of Health by reengineering its standard

operating procedures, polices and other management syslems across the organization to ensure
that the processes are efficient and effective. Through a tripartite collaboration with the Ministry
of Health, our donor partners and the Authority, the Authority is now implementing priority
reforms that guarantee for end to end accountability. Reform priority areas are on the following
thematic arcas;

1. IT and Systems Management.
ICT infrastructure is a key strategic priority and the Authority intends to put in place systems
that are will increase visibility across the supply chain and to strengthen IT controls, The KEMSA
LMIS and Warchouse Management Module will be fully integrated with the DHIS2 system and
the authority is engaging NASCOP to review the HCMP platform for HIV test kits and explore
possibilities of integration with DHIS2 to avoid double entries. Some of the key process issues
identified that required system solutions are resolved:

+  Enhanced Order Management System: This is an ordering platform that will give counties
a better ordering experience as well as support KEMSA in more streamlined order
fulfillment.

e  Proof of Delivery (PODY) Mobile Application: This will support digitized and automated
proot of delivery in the distribution process.

* Procurement System: A system to automate procurement end-to-end

2. Financial, Governance & Risk Management

KEMSA Hnances are managed in accordance with the Public Finance Management Act, 2012, as
applicable, and KEMSA's Finance and Accounting Manual (approved in March 2018). The
Authority in the recent vear under review has been faced with |i:.|ui|Jil'_|.-' risk I_'u‘:re-rr_'d |.'lj|.-' JLH'IHI.""
collection days when compared to expectation of pavable days. The Authority is working on
updating and entforcing a credit policy and also making necessary efforts on timely collection of
debts owed by counties and other development partners. The Authority is also reviewing its
cost allocation policy whose objective is to ensure the Authority’s self-sustenance and capability
by assessing the adequacy of the fees charged by KEMSA on programs,
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3. Procurement

KEMSA procurement is undertaken in accordance with the Public Procurement and Assot
Disposal Act 2015 and attendant regulations 2020 whose aim is to ensure fairness, transparency
and accountability. The Authority is leveraging on information technology-based processes that
focus on minimal human intervention, we are on course to raising our integrity levels, We are
also working closely with various oversight bodies to ensure that we provide constant checks on
our operating procedures and strengthen our governance and ethical standards. Learning trom
the Covid-19 pandemic which necessitated emergency procurement outside of the standard
operating  procecdures, we have reviewed elements including emergency procurement
guidelines. These guidelines also focus on the procedures for contracts management and
supplier performance measurement and management.

4. Warehouse and Logistics Management

The Autharity is working to optimise and ensure that we have full leverage of our unique selling
proposition. By far, we are the best resourced and placed Health Products and Technologies
(HFTs) supply chain solutions provider in sub-Saharan Africa. We provide reliable, affordable
and quality health products and supply chain solutions geared towards improving healthcare in
Kenva and bevond. Going forward, we are optimising our capabilities by adopting technological
solutions and {ocusing on service provision decentralisation to complement our procurement
capabilities. Technically, this means that we shall be integrating the full value chain to derive
cost and lead-time synergies. This also means working closely with local manufacturers to
ensure that we undertake just in time procurement and maintain optimum inventories based on
accurate demand projections, We have a distribution network that does delivery on a last mile
basis to over B,000 facilities across all the 47 counties,

The Authority is working on redesigned plan that will Integrate old and new warehouse and
upgrade the old warehouse to meet Good Warcehousing Practicing Standards, automate picking
and dispatch, racking in Mombasa and Kisumu and fleet tracking. In addition KEMSA will
explore a simple two-tiered distribution system with Programs, where regular distributions for
all counties are scheduled, with a provision for emergency orders and currently there is
integration of Malaria HPTs with EMMS purchased by county facilities, Some TB and HIV orders
are dispatched together. Synchronize the reporting/ ordering of the two programs to facilitate
distribution of both ARVs and TB medicines.
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5. Donations Management

The Authority together with the Ministry of Health, the Department of Health Products
Technologies is working on development of a donations portal intended to ease compliance and
operationalization of requirements of donations. A portal housed by MoH and appropriately
linked to the systems of other stakeholders will be developed and the stakeholders sensitized on
the same. The portal will be complete with the relevant forms and templates on HPT donations
from request, approval, delivery through to feedback

The enline donations portal will allow donors to register and upload both specitic commaodity
data and quality data for the product{s) proposed tor donation. Through the donation’s portal,
products will be technically approved and managed through the entire process. All various
stakeholders will have required access to the donation’s portal. The donations portal will become
the primary interface bebween donors and the various internal stakeholders which will include
Ministry of Health (Mol), Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA), Kenva Bureau of
Standards (KEBS), Pharmacy and Poisons Board ('PB), Pesticides Control Board (PCB), and any
other stakeholder required to approve or view donations.

As we undertake the reforms that will increase internal efficiencies, we are also li‘i-tl.']’.l:i.l'l.H
i.wtwnit!]}' to customers to continue building a more sustainable rtrlnh'a.m.-ihip- Medical needs
cannot be postponed and it is important that we keep the supplies to health facilities flowing,
continuously. As part of the Board and Management team's focus to foster consultative
engagements, we are reaching out to the Council of Governors to establish a liaison partnership
that allows us to effectively engage through established frameworks. We sincerely want to listen
to our stakeholders and ensure that we are flexible and dynamic enough to meet their unique
needs as a one -size -fits- all approach is not sustainable.

To this end | would like to appreciate our parent Ministry and the National Treasury for the
continued financial and technical support, 1 also wish to greatly thank the Board under the
lisa dl'rr.h't}'l of the Charr bor their instrumental su pport in providing an i.‘l'l'n'll.'ll:i['lf.". environment and
resources that facilitates the Authority in achieving its mandate and key strategic objectives. In
conclusion, I would like to thank our statf for their dedication in delivering this exemplary
performance

TERRY KIUNGE RAMADHANI
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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6. STATEMENT OF KENYA MEDICAL SUPPLIES AUTHORITY'S PERFOMANCE
AGAINST PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES FOR FY 2020/2021

Section Bl Subsection 2 (f) of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 requires the accounting officer 1o
include in the financial statement, o statement of the national povernment entity's performance against
predetermined objectives.

KEMSA has 6 strategic pillars and objectives within its Strategic Plan for the FY 2009/ 2020- 2023 /2024

These strategic pillars are as follows:

Pillar 1: Financial Stewardship. Strategic Objective 1: To ensure a robust financial framework for concrebe
financial base.

Fillar 2: Customer Focus. Strategie Objective 2: To increase Market Share from 70% to 9%0%.

Fillar 3; Internal Business Processes and Systems, Strategic Objective 3: To have robust physical facilities,
mnternal business processes, systems and infrastructural upgrades that support business
growth,

Fillar 4: Strategic Partnerships. Strategic Objective 4: To develop and strengthen strategic alliances and
partnerships for improved health supply chain systems.
Pillar 5: Leadership and Governance, Strategic Objective 5: To develop a dynamic, transparent and

accountable governance structure

Pillar 6: Innovation and Technology. Strategic Objective &: To develop and maintain highly effective,
reliable and secure ICT solutions that enhance user experience in healthcare Service Delivery.

KEMSA develops its annual work plans based on the above & pillars. Assessment of the Board's
performance against its annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis. KEMSA achieved its performance
targets set for the FY 2009/ 2020 period for its 6 strategic pillars, as indicated in the diagram below:

Strategic Pillar | Objective | Key Performance | Activities Achievements
| Indicators
! Millar 1: Financial | To  ensure a_;:l "-.T’alue ol I Inerisse revenuae from ajH Billion
Stewardship robust [inancial Capitalizatio supply chain services by 100%
framework  for n [l. Share Health Supply <) 015
concrete b} Budget Chain Expertise,
financial base, Absorption | 111 Enhance KEMSA
rinke capitalization from KES 8
) Gross Profit | Billion to KBS 10 Billion,
Margin | IV, Develop and implement
okl ||1.u.m5|:~m-|-nt
mahanism,
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| Culiure
viiij"rovide assurance on
| intermal controls,
| povernance and risk
i gemient sysloms
i ix) Review the KEMSA Act
Tillar b | To develop and | a) No, of i) Offer automated activity budgeted
Innewation  and | maintain highly functional online enterprise facing and | under fy 21,22
technology effective, rnud:l:lc's in customer facing services o
retliibale vl the ERF i} Enhance availability ’
1 implemiented
SOCLRE L | b) % of business syslems and
solutions Lthat Procu el eersu e conbimurty of bpsamiess
enhance LSeT & ¢honme 1|]:r|:'r.lljur|:'|..
I.':'-.rri.']‘jL!lH'l.' i through i Bt Improve tha=
| health  supply Procurement | officiency and availability of
cham Deliviery, ICT service delivery,
iv) Proactively
fdentifying and mitigating
T ks, tyreabs anad
vurlmera bilities
¥ Enhance complianoe
with best practice
| frameworks, standards,

procedures and governinoe

l |H1lﬂ it

The Authority has cascaded the strategy and its activities downwards through the various departments,
[t has developed a Performance Management Plan which details all KPls (Strategic, Tactical and
Operational indicators) and responsible parties. This too has been cascaded and captured in the
individual Performance contracts with the authority,
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7. CORFPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Corporate governance is the process by which corporations are directed and controlled with the objective
of increasing stake /shareholders value and satisfying them. This is achieved by establishing a system of
cleardy detined authoritios and responsibilities, which result in a system of intermal controls that is
regularly lested o ensure effectivencss,

KEMSA Board recognises that principles of good corporate governance, together with open, honest and
comprehensive business practices, are essential to protect the interests of all stakeholders. These
principles are integrated in the organisational culture to ensare that they become a way of life within the
Authority and further underpinned by the core values of customer focus, integrity, innovation,
professionalism, diversity and inclusivity. Governance principles are incorporated into all the KEMSA
structures, which are continuously reassessed and reviewed to ensure that compliance and best practices
are applied and practised,

Al Kenya Midical Supplies Authority, the Board places a high degree of importance on maintaining a
sound control environment and applying the highest standards of business integrity and professionalism
in all areas of the Authority’s activities. The Board has adopted the

Code of Best Practice for Corporate Governance issued by the Centre for Corporate Governance (Kenya)
is used as the benchmark in developing the Authority's corporate governance principles. In addition,
EEMSA is in compliance with Code of Governance for State Corporations {Mwongozo) which offers
guidance to all state corporations on issues of governance,

The Board 1s responsible for the governance of the Authority and conducts the business and operations
of the Authority with integrity and in accordance with gencrally accepted corporate practces, based on
transparency, accountability and responsibility.

Board of Directors

The composition of the Board is set out on page 8-10. The Authority’s Board of Directors comprises of
the Chairperson who is appointed by the President, the Chief Executive Officer who is appointed by the
Board of Directors in concurrence with the Cabinet Secretary of Health | the Principal Secretary of the
Ministry of Health or her representative, the Principal Secretary to the MNational Treasury or his
representative, a person recruited by the Coundl of Governors and appointed by the Cabinet Secretary
for Health, three independent board members who are not public officers with diverse skills and
experience in management or in the health sector who are appointad by the Cabinet Secretary. All non-
executive directors are independent of management of the Authorily,

The board consist of 9 members as presented below;
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The directors” responsthilities are set out in the Statoment of Directors Responsibilities. The directors are
responsible for the development of internal financial controls, which give assurance against material mis-
statements.

The Board Chair

The Chairperson provides the overall leadership o the Board without limiting the principle of collective
responsibility for Board decisions. She acts as the link between the Board and the Chief Executive Officer
and plays a lead role in consensus building between the Board members, the Chief Executive O=Fficer and
senior management. The Board has delegated the authority for dav-to-day management to the Chief
Executive Officer. [t however retains the overall responsibility for decisions with regard to finances and
operations of the Authorily,

Rale and Funclion of the Board

The key function of the Board 15 to guide and control the perdformance and management of the affairs of
the Authority. The Board considers and advises the Cabinet Secretary for Health on the development and
maintenance of Medical Supply Chain policy framework and the objechives of KEMSA, In this regard the
main roles are;

a) Strategic managemoent

i} Approval of strategic plan, with annual updates, an annual operational plan
and budget and related corporate performance measures;
i) Feviewing the propgroess and performance of the Authority in meeting these

plans and corporate ﬂl‘ﬂ["l.._tl'l.-'i.".'-i.'
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it}  Inconjunction with management, laking account of changes in the business
environmenl, their potential impact on the Authority's strategies and operating environment and
responding to these changes where necessary;

iv) Approving key Auathority policies and working with management in

establishing policies for strengthening the performance of the Authority  including ensuring that
Management is proactively seeking to build the business through areas such as innovation initiabive,
technology, new products, performance improvement and the development of its business capital;

b} Corporate governance

1) Ensuring corporate accountability to the people of Kenva; the government of
Eenyva and all the stakeholders of the Authority primarily through adopting an effective stakeholder
relations strategy, encouraging effective participation at events relevant to the Authority mission and,
through the Chairperson providing a link between the Authority and its stakeholders;

1i) Ensuring that the Authority adheres to high standards of ethical and
corporate behavior

iii) Ensuring that the Authority has appropriate risk management, internal
control and regulatory compliance policies and procedures in place;

v} Ensuring the Authority establishes a corporate social responsibility policy

and acts in accordance with the policy

¢} Key personnel management

i) Monitaring senior management's performance and strategy implementation;

i) In line with Government guidelines appointment of the CEOQ, remunerating the CEQ, formal
reviews of the CEQ's performance, overseeing the development of the CEO and ensuring a
succession plan is i place for the CEO position;

iii)  Delegating appropriate powers to the CEO, Management and Board Committees to ensure the
effective day-to-day management of the business and monitoring the exercise of these
responsibilitices;

ivl)  Approving the corporate remuneration framework and the remunerabon levels of senior
executives and all other levels
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v} Ensuring appropriate human resource systems are in place to ensure the well-being and effective
contribution of all employees.

d) Financial management

i) Approving the annual statutory financial staterents ensuring they are true and fair and otherwise
conform with law;

ii) Ensuring the Authority's financial position is protected and is able to meet its debts and other
ﬂhﬂtgaﬁnm'-. whin they fall due;

i) Approving major capital expenditures, major contracts, acquisitions and divestments;

v} Approval of acquiring, or selling patent rights, rights in registered trademarks, licenses or other
intellectual property rights of the Authority.

Board Membership and Attendance

The Board meets quarterly and has a formal schedule of matters reserved to it. Board papers are
circulated well in advance of the Board meetings by the secretary to the board.

Table 1: Board Membership and Attendance for the Current Directors for the FY 2020-2021

LSenkKembi | Appointed by | (Bl 28

Laituira the President April 2021 n/a nja n/a nfa 12
I
Char I —

2.Ms Mary Appointed by

Pl wad imee the President E:::;l:;: n/a n/a n/a nfa 2
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3 My | Representing |
s | PS, The | Wlember|e ] / " ; 5
h.'ﬁu : Mationol | xited in ols = i
g Treasnry
4.0, Josphat | Represeating 1 .
Mbuva MO Member | & 1 n/a 3 14
i R . B ! —
| 5-Mr. George | Represesbitiow of
Ormbua SCAC Aesivhee 2 . s
Bt Mary ﬁ?m e
Abbeni b Wi bior q n'a 3 1 1]
A Mertvoml
W Treasuriy
| Member | i
.M 1
:E":Ilq.d. Joe Idepeviedered (bl 28 [ nfa B | 5 nia 14
o | April2021
= ____ Member{b
Ir.
;:.u:‘illhl.ﬂni {mdependeant f 28 1 i n/fa 5 13
April 2021
o Prof. Member{ti
Timothy tmdepenilent il IR | B n/ o n/a 4 12
Wisirma April, 2021
Memboer
A
:‘] L"_E:’:" Independent (il 28" | n/a 5 5 n/a 10
AW April, 2021
1. 5844,
Theodora Rrprr:t'.rrmmr % Member 1 I 1 -
T SCAC
Lichana |

Process of appointment and Removal of Directors

Board structure, composition and method of appointing and removing directors are detailed section 5 of

thi KEMSA Act 2013 and as aminded thereafter,

Board Member Performance

The Board conducts an annual evaluation to appraise its performance. This evaluation is carried out in
accordance with the Board Evaluation Tool. The Board evaluation provides an opportunity for Board
members to identify strengths, collective skill gaps and individual areas of improvement. For the year
under review the Board Evaluation will be conducted within the first quarter of financial year 2021,
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Induction and training

The Board provides new Board members with an etfective imduction programmee in order to familiarze
them with their responsibilities as directors, general principles of corporate governance and Board
practices. The induction programme will also provide the Board member with an orientation of the
authority’s strategic plans, financial status and policies, risk management, compliance programmes and
the Code of Conduct and Ethics, Under the year of review there lwo new board members thal were taken
through the induction programme,

Board Remaneration

Board members shall be remunerated for their services in accordance with the prevailing relevant
legislative provisions and/ or guidance from the relevant authority, In line with best practice, Directors
are entitled to a sitting allowance for every meeting attended, lunch allowance, accommodation
allowance and mileage reimbursement where applicable, In addition, the Chairperson is paid a monthly
hiomasrarium.

Conflict of Interest

The board members are required to disclose real or potential conflict of interest to the Board at every
meeting and are excluded from voting on such areas, We condirm that there was no business transaction
that was transacted by the board in which any of the board members had disclosed a personal interest in
conflict with those of the Authority

Board Charter

Thi authority has a Board Chatter in place which provides goidelines to the roles of the board and
responsibilities as well as lunctions and structures in a way thal supports the members in carrying oul
their strategic oversight function, The Charter does not replace or supersede any statutory laws and
regulations that govern the Authorty.
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8. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Financial year 2020/2021 has scen KEMSA make remarkable strides with regard 1o ensuring the
continued execution of our mandate as outlined in the KEMSA Act of 2003, with stability seen across all
key business metrics. KEMSA Strategic Plan AN%-2024 will also give impetus o the ongoing
mfrastructure expansion such a new modern warchouse and office block as well as redesigned
distribution centres in Mombasa and Kisumu.

The Authority has continued to prudently manage the financial resources and application of the same in
providing services to the people of Kenya in strict compliance with Constitution of Kenya 2010, the Public
Finance Management Act and related regulations as well as Treasury Circulars issned from time to time.

In compliance with the Public Finance and Management Act, the Authority did the fellowing:

L Submission of Quarterly Financtal Staternents to the national Treasury by the 15th day of
the next tollowing quarter

ii, Submission of the Performance contracting Evaluation Reports to the National Treasury,
inspectorate of State Corporation and the Ministry of Health within by the 15th day of the
next following quarter

iii. KEMSA Submitted its budpet to National Treasury through the Ministry of Health by 31=
of January 2020,

v, Submission of Annual Procurement Plan by 15% August 2020

v, Compliance with other circulars from National treasury issued in FY 2020,/ 2031

Financial Highlights

KEMSA’s total revenue for the financial vear 2020-21 was KES 3.684 Billion which is composed of grants
from the Ministry of Health of Ksh 125 Million, Net sales of Ksh 1.317 Billion, supply chain fees of Ksh
1.543 Billion, Interest income of Ksh 616 Million and other incomes of Ksh 75.5 Million,
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Revenue Trend

IS
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m
=

Sales of Service

EEMSA earned KSh. 1.543 Billion from sale of procurement, warehousing and distribution services from
key stratesric pariners, 8% of these sarnings came from Global fund, 26% Trom USATD. The distribuation

ol sales services for the vear 15 as shown belowe:

SALE OF SERVICE A5 AT 30TH JUNE 2021
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I'he highest sournces of revenue in the vear 2020-2021 camie from supply chain fees at Ksh 1.543 Billion at
42% followed by Net sales at Ksh. 1.265 Billion at 36%, with other income and government grant being
19% amd 3% respectively

REVENUE LINE PROPORTION

| LRANTS
B MET SALES
B SUPOLY CHAIN FELS

OTHER IMCOMES

Expenditure Absorption Rate

During the financial vear ended 30th June, 2021, the Authority’s recurrent expenditure amounted to Kshs
3.277 Billion against a target of Kshs 3.285 Billion. Translating into 99.8% absorption of the total funds
allocated while Capital Expenditure amounted o KSh %4 Million against a target of KSh 1120
translating into 86% absorption.

Budget versus Actual
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Siles revemure analysis;

EEMSA's Sales revenue amounted o Kshs 8.2 Billion, with a cost of sales of Kshs 6.91 Billion. The Fross
profit was Ksh 1.32 Billion. The realized sales revenue were slightly above target. There was however a
|||'E.=||'I||l'| ol the conailies |,|1.|'.l.-.|||'_ rl:;.fllllh. o UHC winds and a deorease iy dishiirsemonl of o I|!'I.||||'|

reelease to the counbies resulting to low salics orders

Turn Over trend Trend

F1Ef PO 2019 10T i il |

[he UHC sales for FY 2020-2(21 was Ksh. 4155 Billion representing 51 % of the total turnover, while
EMMS sales were Ksh., 4.068 Billion Representing 49% of the total sales. FY 2020-21 turnower reduced

by 22% when compared to FY 2019-2020 turnover

The Authority's Current assets reduced by Ksh, 3,785 Billion mamlby attribuled o decrease in Cash and
Cash equivalents on UHC funds and tied up capital on inventory

GROWTH IN TOTAL ASSET

N1, 715

20172018 20 2019/ 2020

ErANCIAL YEAR
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Information and Commmunication Tecknology

The authority has embraced technology for operational efficiency and effectiveness in the achievement of
its mandate. During the vear under review, the Authority fully operationalized, the Logistics
Management Information systems (LMIS) for both Universal Health Coverage (UHC) and Essential
Medicine and Medical Supplies (EMMS). LMIS is a computer system used by the counties for ordering
medical commodities, The LMIS is an e-platform that enables county health facilities (o accesses stock
status al the KEMSA warchouse, place orders online and access reports online. Approvals are done within
the LMIS system. The LMIS systems removed paper in the ordering processing and enhanced the order
turn-around ring and management of Universal Healthcare commodities,

Dhuring, the year the Authority implemented a Wide area network in Kisumu connecting Kisumuo with
Embakasi warehouse, This has enabled visibility of stock between the two warchouses and efficient
processing of orders,

During the vear under review the Authority implemented an E-Board Management Systems to autlomate
the operations of the Board and enhance its efficiency, The system will enable the Board to managemient
meeting effectively, with the advantage of reducing paperwork and enhancing remote altendance
capabilitivs thus reducing traveling and printing,

Business Process Engineering is central 1o process improvement in the Authority, The authority has
embarked in process improvement initiatives with the aim of enhancing business efficiency, The

enhancements ane ongoing.

KEMSA's Risk Managemen! Strategy

The Board and Management of KEMSA have identified that the achievement of its Vision, Mission and
Objectives (strategic and operational) requires a coordinated and stroctured way of identifying and
managing events impacting on the Authority. One of the key stralegic management tools is risk
management, KEMSA Board and Management has identified the following as the top KEMSA Corporate
Risks.

The risks highlighted below should not be considered a complete narration of all risks and uncertainbies
that KEMSA may face: -

Mo. J_RJ-Ek Source ] MItIEaIJm ) |
i B Lexss of key partners | = Enhance good corporate
= [olitical environment POV eTTRnCe
p Insdequate Stakeholders | & Enhance stakeholders”
managemaent and engagement managenen
= NL"'E;J v FflLl:l:'I-Hl.'i.l.j.' s Enhance l'."nrpl:ll'n.!u
= Foor performance communication
= [mplerment  strabegics  for
improing performance
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{2 Cylwer risks, data managemient
| and  system  risks and  JCT p Inadequate 1T security and system | ¢ Implement Cyber security
inadeguacies survedllance surveillance tools |
= Failure o adbere w0 10T amd [ = Implement ICT |
Information security policy Information security policy |
& Imploment [T
technologies
3, -|.i|.|L|.i:-|JI|::|.' and  cash  fAow I
challenges o meet mandate and p Inadeguate financial planning # Develop  and  implement
objectives s Weak budgetary control processes financial planning policies
» [nadequate or  inefficient Financial @ Implement budpet  and
Controls control poliches
0 Non-Complisnce with PFM act and # Enhance  good  corporate
other repulations EOveTmance
s Woak Uovernanee strucharss o Haasiow credil coiilral
» Delay in customer debt pay ment MCASLUes

= Comply with PFM act and |
other regulations

4. | Noncompetitive HPTs prices b Defaull method of procurement b Market survey |
I (open tender) & Use competitive methods of
' » Procuring from agents procirement
: » Price fixing |

5, | ﬂi.ﬁruprjun.-i al KEMSA's | " |:r||.|'|||-r|.'|1-n1 Buasingss
| operations Continuity Management

| p Unforeseen events
. Negative public perception on » Negative  Media  reports  and

KEMSA's bramnd Coverage = Modia training
s Implement  targets  based

s ["oor service delivery

s Corruption and Ethics perception ESRAt,
| i e = [mplement corrujpon
:L Breakdown  in communication preventian measiires
| among top, middle and low levels Improve in information flow
within the arganization s Dovelop and implement staff
b Stalf dissatisfaction motivation programs

Noncompliance  with  legal, » Lack of awarencss of Standards = Traiming and sensitization
regulstory  and  other global | 504 reguiremients  Develop financial planning
standard requirements

=

# Changes in legal and regulalory | policies
environment
» Budgetary constraints
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B | Operational  incfficiencies  in
| procurement, warehousing and » Negative staff attitude = Implement  activity  based
distribution process. ®» Erratic ordering  patterns from buc et

# Implemient change
management

Counties

» Burcaucracies in processes ; ;
. Reengimsering - procuncmaent

e Prolonged procurement cyele
: process

9. ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING

Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA) exists to transtorm lives, This is our purpose; the driving
force behind everything we do. It's what guides us to deliver our strategy, putting the customer / Citizen
first, delivering relevant goods and services, and improving operational excellence. Below is an outline
of the organization's policies and activities thal promote sustainability.
i) Sustainability strategy and profile

As a responsible corporate citizen, KEMSA recognizes the need to engage with ils diverse public and
stakeholders through Corporate Social Eesponsibility (C5SR) o embrace corporate accountability and to
encourage a positive impact on the environment and stakeholders. This has cullivated good relations in

the environment we operate in,

KEMSA's core responsibility to its various stakeholders s o work closely with them o parsue the
enhancement and lulflillment of corporate values through sound business practices to promote a
sustainable society,

KEMSA developed a CSE Strategy aligned to the Authority's Strategic Plan 2019-2024 which has
institutionalizid the practice of CSE by priwiding guidelines on parinership opportunities tor C5E
programmes. This is i support of KEMSA's Strategic Objective No. 4; To develop and strengithen

strategic alliances and partnerships for improved health supply chain systems.

Corporate Social Responsibility Engagements
EEMSA appreciates the need (o participate in CSE activities since it gives the Authority an opportunity
to give back to the society, country and environment. CSR poes beyond acts of charity and philanthropy

and it encompasses initiatives thal enable the Authority 1o lake responsibility for linancial prudence,

42




Keinsa .

-
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2021 .

stakeholder welfare and environmental sustainability, all of which are central o the achievement of

EEMSA s mandate.

Benefits of Corporate Social Responsibility For KEMSA
o Visibility and improved reputation of the Authority
o [Enhanced service delivery
o Make the world a better place
o Make KEMSA a public sector role model

« Building relationships with key stakeholders.

KEMSA has devoted itself to not only protect but also add value to the environmaent for the benefit of
current and future generations. In fulfilling our CSR promises, KEMSA has adopted a "Valoe to the Planet
Fillar’ under which the following activity was undertaken;

i) World Environmental day participation

On 5 June 2021, KEMSA in partnership with NEMA participated in the World Environment Day that
was held at Garissa University Grounds, The theme for the day was “Act now, Restore Nature and
Livelihood”, which KEMSA echoed through a domation of Kshs, 200,000/ that went towards tree

planting in Garissa County.
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KEMSA has over the years partiwred with the Kenva Forest Service in the * Adopt-a-Forest” project

whereby the Authority planted about 3,000 indigenous tree seedlings and maintained three acres al

the semi-arid area of Kibiko (orest,

However, due to the Covid-19 challenges the Authomity went through during the last financial vear,

KEMSA did not undertake any activities al the site in Kibiku Forest, We will however endeavor to

embark on this activity this financial year,

iii) Employee welfare
HEALTH & SAFETY POLICY STATEMENT

KEMSA is committed to using sound and responsible practices to safeguard the health, safety and welfare
of its emplovess, contractors, customers and any other person affected by its operations.
Occupational Health and Safety issues shall be addressed in systematic, proactive and explicit manner to

ensure that they are an integral part of day to day business of the organization.

To fulfil this commaitment KEMSA undertakes to:

» Conform to the set company policies and comply with applicable national and international

regulations and code of practice governing occupational health and safety;

= Ensure the management properly supervises all processes and systems of work that are designed to
take account of health and safety and are held accountable for results on safety performance by setting

vearly key performance indicators;
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# Support each employes with appropriate safety and health awareness training, supervision and other
resources as necessary to enable safe performance of work in accordance with company policy;

#  Facilitate the necessary forums where emplovees can raise issues of health and safety through the
established Health and Safety Committees;

F  Encourage consultation with and active parbicipation of employees by continuously seoking to
improve the performance of health and safety systems in place;

# Ensure the provision and maintenance of adequate resources to take care of salety issues;

# Ensure that persons in workplace take responsibility  for aspects of OH&S over which they have
contral and provide a forum lor continuous identification of workplace hazards;

#  Protect the health and safety of identified vulnerable emplovess including the disabled staff, pregnant
and nursing women, and ensure they perform work appropriate to their physical capacity and those
that pose no health hazards;

# Ensure visitors, contractors and customers abide by laid down safety health guidelines and
procedures on site;

F Consult with external experts and other interested parties on OH&S issues; and

F Ensure the corporate health and safety management system is fully implemented within its business

This will be done through total commitment and participation from all levels of employees.

'he effective of OH&S management system shall be regularly reviewed in light of legislative and

organizational changes,

Cwver the vears, the Authority has continupusly retained a skilled team with depths of experience and
ability to execute on our core mandate and objectives. We continue to  attract, develop and retain the
right talent while inculeabing a performance-based culture.

Continuoos improvement is the cornerstone of our high-performance culture, which drives us (o learn,
change and improve. During the year, we continued conducting wellness programs covering staft, their
immediate families and the neighbouring communities.

The Awuthority values its human capital and focuses on providing an enabling environment and
maintaining a work force that is equipped with required knowledge, skills and competoncies to enable
the Authority achieve its mandate and develop its workforce.

i) Gender Analysis:

The Authority staff establishment is aligned with the organeational regquirements. As at 300 june 2021, the

Authority had a total workiorce of 877 comprising various cadres distributed as detailed here-below:
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Category/Level Total No. of Gender |
staff per — |
category/level Ii Lender N,
Senjor . 7 Male | 20
Management (SA1-5A3 .
grment (3 :I Female 7
Middle & Supervisory 252 Male 120
HA4-5A
E i Frmalie 132
| Operational staff & R Mals 07
Support (SAS-S5A12) . —l

‘ Female 1ET \
Mot

In addition, we also have the following officers as at the same period (309 June 2021).

. Seconded stalf from Ministry of Health (SC) - 5
2. Attached Staff from Security of Governiment Building {Admin Police) - 13
3. Short Term Contract Staff (STC) - 36

TOTAL 54

b Capacily Building

In order to equip our people with the relevant skills and competencies, the Authority implemented its Annual
Training Flan during the FY. The approach adopted including offering employees training programs that
will help them upskill their professionalism and enhance their performance. Out of a total target of 240
programs, wi were able to execute 68, the programs were greatly affected by the Covid-19 pandemic during
the year under review, Number of programs during the year as summarized in table below;

S5MNo. | Category of training ] No. of staff trained
BT Cross-departmental O
2, Performance Contract LR -
i Protessional programs 26
4. Chher Flr-t;p;mm;_ - a6
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el Yeuwth Attachmenis & Internships

REMSA continues o ofber several University and muddle level collége students work integrated leaming
specific to thiir areas of interest in all the sechions and departments.  Under this progrram, the interns are
hasi<d at a spoeciin Pusirees uml for a |'-|'|||-.| of 3-6 months in order (o learn on the job and get e
appropriate mentorship in the specific areas. This program enhances the Government's agenda on
development and growth for the youth, the Auathorty implemented an attachment and internship

program as follows:

a) Attachments . for ompoing/ continuing students
b) Internships - as a post gqualification for graduates from various

Limiversities, -l||-:':,'||“\. S lerbiary instifulons

[he Internship program was done in liaison with the Public Service Commuission (P5C) while attachment was
coordinated topether with the Malional Indostral |r.|||11||:_'. Authorty (NITAY. Detadls [or the attaches amnd

interns are as per graph below:

Youths on attachment/ Internship- Gender

As at the end of the year, KEMSA had engaged 36 Attaches, and 8 interns in total, Attaches represented

#1.8% while mterns represented 18.18% of student intake in the year as illustrated in the chart below:

KEITISa Students on Attachment by Gender

et

I the year, of the 36 students on Attachmwnt, X were female representing 56'%
__':'hh'hﬂl:' L& were Wale representing 4%

WWW. EBIMES, CO. K2
L] D
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KEIT\Sa Interns by Gender

- . !

In FY 202021 of the etght nterns in the organization, three were fermale and five
wire male.

di Performance Appraisal:

The Authority implemented its performance management and review program that entailed review of
performance for employees based on a bi-annual and an annual appraisal framework, The framework
meorporates setting targets, reviewing and evaluating the samae = based on the Strategic Flan, Performance

Contracting and other operational requirements

el Employee Welfare and Wellness

The Authority continued offering staff medical insurance cover to employees and their families, The medical
insurance package consists of in-patient; cutpatient, maternity dental and optical cover. This is meant (o
enhance employee health and wellness, which in turn boosts employee morale, hence increased productivity.

Other wellness programs included sensitization of the employees and external community on HIV / AIDS

awareness. This is as detailed in the table below:
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i L. Mo, of employees sensitueed on HIV/ AlDS 2

; 2 Mo, of exbernal community members reached out MIL
! by KEMS5A on HIV S AIDS awarenoss
3. Mo, of statf who attended rehabilitabion program 3 I

Covid-19 measures:
In a bid to prevent the spread of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Authority iniated the following activities:

a) Testing of statf for Covid-19

b} Vaccnation of staff against Covid-19

) Provision of face masks to stafi

di Prowvision of sanilizers

e] Ensuring that there is adequate water and soap for washing hands

h Disintecting of work places,

N Diiversity and Inclustvity
The Authority ascribes to the Government requirements on diversity and inclusivity in all its programs and

activities, The Authority has set up the following Committees to addniss issues of diversity and inclusivity:

a) Gonder Mainstreaming Commitios.
b Mational Cohesion and Values Committes.
¢} Disability Mainstreaming Commiltee,

The following graph illustrates the gender composition affirming the Authority’s commitment in observing

a third gender rule.

49




KEMSa

Annual Reports and Financial Statements

For the year ended June 30, 2021

KEII]E KEMSA TOTAL STAFF

DISTRIBUTION

® mule

o el

In FY 2020/ 21, Male staff represented 63% of total staff in KEMSA while
female stall represended 377%,

@) Ethics amd Integrity:

The Authority is committed to enhancing ethics and integrity in its operations. This enhances the protection
of KEMSA's assets and prevents frawd. The following initiatives have been put in place:

a} Appointment of Integrity Assurance Officers

b} Traiming and sensitization of emplovees on integrity

¢} Filling and submission of Wealth Declaration Forms for new /exiting employees and once every
two years by all employees,

l Employee Relations

The Authority ensured that cordial employee relations were maintained during the year under review. The
following initiatives were implemented (o enhance employee relations:

a) Resolution of emplovee grievances as receivod.
b} Appointment and operationalization of a Disciplinary Committee

iv) Market place practices
al Responsible compelition practice

EEMSA believes in fair competition in procurement and tendering, Procurement at KEMSA is conducted
strictly in adherence to the Public Procurement and Disposal Act, 20015, KEMSA has aligned to the
Treasury’s Integrated Financial Management Information System (IFMI5) portal further enhancing
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procurement in an open and transparent manner that encourages open competition and open to public
examination and review, This process enables KEMSA to obtain high quality goods and services at
reasonable cost.

KEMSA has continuously done market assessment on pricing to ensure that prices of essential
commexdities remain considerably low. We have also been increasing our product range with an aim of
availing more commodities for specialized categories eg. Oncology, Urolopy, Laboratory, Theatre and
Orthopedics. KEMSA greatly values her customers by providing quality and affordable health products
and technologies geared towards sustainability of a long and mutually beneficial relationship. We focus
on low cost and best value of the products and services we provide to our customers.

KEMSA is free from political interference as il is governed by an Act of parliament and other relevant
legislation. Governance at KEMSA is overseen by an independent Board of Direclors,

Al KEMSA we recognize that adherence (o the principles of competiion while dealing with our
customers is essential to the maintenance of the integrity of the Authority. KEMSA seeks to achieve
reaponsible commercial success and compete on a level plaving ground, we are committed to promoting
farr competition and healthy marketplaces, We operate in compliance with the applicable competition
laws in the country. KEMSA prides itself as a market leader and being a government agency is committed
to making health products and technologies alfordable by offering the best prices in the market whilst
enhancing customer experience.

by Responsible marketing and advertisement

As part of the marketing and advertising of KEMSA’s Health Products and Technologies, we always give
profound consideration to the intended recipients and those exposed to the messages and ensure that our
marketing communications do not inclode harmful, illegal, immoral, imesponsible or misleading content.
We ensure that the conlent communicated to consumers are appropriate and carry with them all the
sensitivity required. We endeavor (o maintain ethical marketing practices by focusing on provision of
procucts that are responsive to customer needs.  We build and maintain customer relationships with
honesty, integrity and loyalty while abiding by the law,

€} Product stewvardship

Product stewardship for KEMSA means that our products satisfy the highest quality standards and are
safe for the consumers. KEMSA endeavors fo maintuin product stewardship Hirough vigorous screening of our
supplier stakeholders while targeting on minimizing the health, safety, enpirommental, and social impacts of
the products and promotion of our customer’s rights to basic needs, safety, information, representation,
consumer education and a healthy environment. All products undergo extensive quality assurance along,
the entire value chain including post distribution surveillance in the interest of product safety. We strictly
adhere to local and international standards, product specifications and legal requirements,
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We are committed to strict adherence to our systems and pm{dums A n;:-:n;plicat‘ed in oufr U—ualit:,.*
Management System.

The KEMSA Laboratory is now highly regarded both nationally and internationally for its technical
competence b test quality of medical products before they are released to the public. KEMSA also works
with Mational Quality Control Laboratory, Kenyva Burean of Standards (KEBS) and other regulatory
bodies to ensure patients safety. More importantly, KEMSA ensures that only those products that are
authorized to be in the market by Pharmacy and Poisons Board are procured.

Recently the Authority expanded its laboratory to emsure that latest equipment is in place 1o assure
quality of commaodities betore distribution to various health facilities.

Good business practices with suppliers

KEMSA has put in place long term framework contracts currently two years for supply of Health
Products and Technologies (Health Products and Technologies). Managing of relationship with supplicers
is key in ensuring that contract terms are met by both parties.

Supplier Performance Measurement

KEMSA has put in place a supplier performance measurement tool that helps track performance
of each supplier against outlined key performance indicators (KPls). The KPls aim at measuring
delivery timeliness, quantity, quality and cost. Suppliers who perform well are eligible to be
awarded future contracts at KEMSA. Punitive measure also applies to suppliers whose
performance is below the required threshold, Such measures include and not limited to Contract
termination, Liquidation of Performance Security and debarment in line with the procurement

law.
Supplier Conferences and Regular Meetings

KEMSA has adopted the practice of holding supplier conferences at least twice a year. During these
conferences, all suppliers who have running contracts with KEMSA are invited for an open discussion,
highlight supply challenges and discuss ways to improve supplier performance. Furthermore, regular
meetings are held with suppliers experiencing supply challenges and a way forward is agreed upon.

Continuous frero-toay Communication twith suppliers (providing immediate feedback)

KEMSA has a dedicated contract management unit whose main mandate is to n.'lnl:lnunusl}-' track
performance of each supplier against the contractual terms. Continuous communication through letters,
e-mails and even lelephone conversation provide a platform where there is continuous update and
feedback from the supplier on the status of their contract.
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Timely Issuance of Relevant Documents

Timely and effective internal processing of relevant documents such as purchase orders, inspection and
acceptance letters and contracts agreements have a significant impact on supplier performance. This

facilitates delivery of products, imely bank financing where necessary,

v) Corporate Social Responsibility/ Community Engagements

EEMSA s a medical supermarket that procures, warchouses and distributes Health Products and
Technologies to all public faclities countywide, In order to ensure that the health commodities are in
pood condition, good warehousing practices should be maintained not only in KEMSA but in all health
facilities. 1t is in this repard and in light of KEMSA Strategic objective no. ['V: which stipulates our role (o
support county governments to establish and maintain appropriate supply chain systems for drugs and
mardical supplies, that KEMSA identified three best performing counties namely Kwale, Nakuru and
Kilifi.

The Authority embarked on a structured CSR journey with these counties (o ensure they maintained
high standards in commodity management. This will ensure quality, effectivencss and satety of the
drugs. KEMSA, in liaison with the three counties identified respective areas that needed support as

follows;

il Msambreeni County Referral Hospital
e facility identified drug store shelving as their most pressing need. KEMSA distributes medical
commodities to this facility but it lacked a shelved drug store. The commodities would be received
at the facility and placed on the foor on pallets. The Authority commitied to ensuring shelving
was done at the drug store at a cost of Kshs 497,000/~ to boost commodity management at the
facility drug store. This is a great milestone to the facility, which has a catchment population of
about 23,307 people. It brings along sanity and orderliness o inventory management and proper
commaodity storage. Phase 2 of the project will include temperature control measures, painting

and co-branding,.

53




KeInsa

e

Annual Reports and Financial 5tatements

For the year ended June 30, 2021

i}

HBefore 'hotos

After Photos

Mtwvapa Health Centre

I'he facility has a catchment population of about 63,000 people that are direct beneficiaries. Plans
are underway to upgrade it from a Health Centre to a Sub County hospital. The Health Centre
had a dilapidated and incomplete drug store that needed {looring (tiles), wall plastering and
ceiling. KEMSA donated Kshs 499,500/ - which facilitated these requirements; tiling of the Hoor,

ceiling, placement, and wall plastering.

In order to continue in maintaining good warchousing practices at the facility, the Authority will
undertake the following activities under Phase [T of the project;

e Racking

»  Tempoerature control

» [Painting and co-branding
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Before photos

After Photos

iy Nyonjore Health Centre = Nakiru

Fhe facility requested for support in equipping their newly established laboratory. The facility
serves a population of around 10,000 people and lack of a functional laboratory in the area affects
service dolivery to this F'-u|:un|.n'ul. Equipping the laboratory will aid in diagnosing and testing
diseases of the patients visiting the facility. In view of this, KEMSA donated Kshs 500,000/ - that
wint towards the purchase of the following items;

s ] Olympus binocular microscope

s 2 Laboratory stools

» 1 Laboratory table

» 1 laboratory metallic cabinet
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10.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors submit this report logether with the financial statements for the yvear ended 30 June 2021,

which show the state of affairs of Kenyva Medical Supplies Authority.

i}

Principal Activities

The authority’s principal activities are;

a)

b)

e

ii)

To procure, warchouse and distribute drugs and medical supplies for the prescribed public health
programs, the national strategric reserve stock reserve, prescribed essential health packages and
national referral hospitals.
To establish a network of storage, packaging and distribution facilities for the provision of drugs
and medical supplies to health institutions.
To enter into partnership with or establish frameworks with county Governments for purposes of
providing services in procurement, warchousing, distribution of drugs and medical supplics.
Collect information and provide regular reports Lo the national and county governments on the
status and cost effectiveness of procurement, the distribution and value of prescribed essential
medical ﬁuppiim delivered to health facilities, Stock status and on any other aspect of supply
system and performance that may be required by stakeholders,
Support county governments to establish and maintain appropriate supply chain systems for
drugs and medical supplies.

Results

KEMSA's results for the year ended 300 June 2021 are sot oul on pages 61-109.

i)

Directors

The names of the directors who held office during the year to the date of this report are sel out on page

H-10.
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v} Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Kenva Medical Supplies Authorities in
accordance with Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Awdit Act 2015 to carry out the
audit lor the yvear ended June 300 2021 in accordance to section 23 of the Pablic Awdit Act, 2005 which

empowers the Auditor General to appoint an auditor to audit on his behall
By Order of the Board

Mr. Fred Wanyonyi
Corporation Secretary

Mairobi

P B B Koan (“E“ )
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11. STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITIES

Section 81 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and Kenya Medical Supplies Authority Act of 25
lanuary 2013 section 17 requires the Direclors to prepare financial statements in respect of the Kenya
Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA), which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Authority at the end of the [inancial vear and the operating results for that year. The Directors are also
required to ensure that KEMSA Leeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable acouracy

of its financial position. The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Authority.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of KEMSA's financial statements, which
give a true and Fair view of the state of affairs as al the end of the financial year ended 30% June, 2021, This

responsibility includes:

(1] maintaining adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue
to be effective throughout the reporting !wrind:

[1i) mamntaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the L'I'I.I]'.l':.".'

{iiiy  designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that they are free from material
miisstabements, whether due to error or fraud;

i) safeguarding the assets of KEMSA,;

iv) selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and

(vi) I'l'hﬂ]v.ing accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Directors accept responsibility for the KEMSA’s financial statements, which have been prepared using,
appropriate accounting poelices supported by reasonable and prodent judgements and estimates, in
conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the manner reguired by
the Public Finance Management Act and the State Corporations Act. The Directors are of the opinion that
the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of KEMSA'S transactions during the financial
year ended 30th June 2021, and of the financial position as at that date.
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[ht Diirectors further confirm the completeness of the accounting records maintained by KEMSA which
have been relied apon in the preparation of the financial statements as well as the adequacy of the systoms

of internal imancal contral,

Mothing has come to the attention of the Dircctors to indicate that KEMSA will not femain a poing concern

for at least the st beelvie months from the date of this statement.
Approval of the financial statements

The entity’s financial statements were approved by the Board on 2021 and signed onits

Behall by

Signature... v .. Signature... .o

Terry Kiunge Ramadhani Mary Chao Mwadime
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER BOARIDCHAIRPERSOY S
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OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL P.0. Box 30084-00100

Eniyrne ing Accoumdahiiiby NAIRCHBI

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON KENYA MEDICAL SUPPLIES
AUTHORITY (KEMSA) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2021

PREAMBLE
| draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulalions, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a2 prudent,
efficient,. economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are appled for intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment, and the internal controls developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the

entity.
An unmodified opinion does not necessanly mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations, and that its internal controls, risk management and

governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three paris of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS
Adverse Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statemenis of Kenya Medical Supplies
Authority (KEMSA) set out on pages 61 to 119, which comprise of the statement of
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financial position as at 30 June, 2021, and the statement of financial performance,
statement of changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and the statement of
comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the
provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit
Act, 2015, | have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

In my opinion, because of the significance of the malters discussed in the Basis for
Adverse Opinion section of my report, the financial statements do not present fairly, the
financial position of the Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA) as at 30 June, 2021,
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance
with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and do not comply
with the Kenya Medical Supplies Authority Act, 2013 and the Public Finance Management
Act, 2012.

Basis for Adverse Opinion

1. Unauthorised Expenditure
1.1 Over Expenditure on Plant and Machinery

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and machinery of
Kshs.7,167,704,659 (2020 — Kshs.§,341,530,305) which, as disclosed in Note 33(a) to
the financial statements, includes an addition to plant and machinery amounting to
Kshs 37 668,128 comprising forklifts and reach tracks whose budget was
Kshs. 33,200,000 leading to an unapproved over expenditure of Kshs. 4 468,129,

1.2 Over Expenditure on Employee Costs

Similarly, the statement of financial performance reflects employee cost balance of
Kshs.1,264,328,720 while the approved budget indicates a balance Kshs,1,199,280,000
restlting to unexplained over expenditure of Kshs 65,049 720

In the circumstances, the regularity in the expenditure amounting to Kshs 69,517 840
could not be confirmed for the year ended 30 June, 2021

2. Inaccuracy in the Financial Statements

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.7,167 704,659 (2020 — Kshs.6,341 530,305), which, as disclosed in Note 33(a) to
the financial statements, includes a provision on scrapping for unverified fixed assets
balance of Kshs. 236,678,111 on various PPE items and an accumulated depreciation of
Kshs.72 937 502 This resulted into net prior year adjustment of Kshs, 163,740,520 which
is reflected in the statement of changes in net assets contrary to Paragraph 48 of the
International Public Sector Accounting Standard (IPSAS) 3 which states that a prior
period error shall be corrected by retrospective restatement except to the extent that it is
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impracticable to determine either the period specific effects or the cumulative effect of the
error.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completenass of statement of changes in net
assets for the year ended 30 June, 2021 could not be confirmed,

3. Irregular Procurement of Assets

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and equipment of
Kshs.7,167,704,659 (2020 — Kshs.5,341,530,305) as disclosed in Note 33(a) to the
financial statements. The Authority advertised for supply of four (4) forklift and four (4)
reach trucks and five (5) firms responded using different currencies, one quoted with Euro
{€), three in USA Dollar (USD) and one in Kenya shillings (KES). The wining company
had quoted two (2) forklifts at EUR 74,000 and four (4) Reach Trucks at EUR 169,800 all
amounting to EUR 243 800, There was no evidence of uniformity in evaluating using
same currency by converting prevailing market rates for all bids quoted fo one currency

In the circumstances, the accuracy and propriety in the expenditure on the procurement
of the plant and eguipment could not ba confirmed.

4. Unsupported Contracts — Warehouse Works

The statement of financial position reflects property., plant and machinery of
Kshs. 7,167,704 659 which, as disclosed in Note 33(a) to the financial statements,
includes an amount of Kshs 560,283 859 in respect of addition to plant and machinery.
Review of the balances revealed that an amount of Kshs. 4 740,000 paid to a contractor
for assembling and fixing of storage racks. The Authority awarded lender to assemble
and fix metal storage racks in Kisumu and Mombasa warehouses on 07 July, 2020 at a
cost of Kshs.4,740 000 with a duration of one month ending 10 August, 2020. Physical
verification in February, 2022 revealed that some metal bars were delivered to Kisumu
warehouse but were not assembled while none were delivered to Mombasa warehouse,
In addition, the designs, Bills of Quantities and Technical Supervision Reports were not
provided for audit review.

In the circumsiances, the accuracy and propriety in the expenditure on the procurement
of the plant and equipment could not be confirmed.

5. Unsupported Distribution Costs

The statement of financial performance reflects distribution costs amounting fto
Kshs.859.488 800 which, as disclosed in Note 9 to the financial statements, includes an
amount of Kshs. 728,351,595 paid to outsourced distributors for delivery of medical
commodities to varous counties. However, the corresponding signed delivery notes were
not provided for audit review

Further, the balance includes an amount of Kshs. 33,075,000 paid to outsourced
distribution costs of assoried personal protective equipment, PPE kit dispatched to
MNyanza Province (PGH) — Jaramogi Oginga Odinga Teaching and Referral Hospital
(JOOTRH), However, physical verification camied out at the Hospitals revealed that there
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was no entry of this consignment in the respective store records while the copy of the
delivery notes provided did not indicate the date of receiving the items

In addition, and as previously reported, the Authority entered into a contract agreement
with a Courier Services Company on 24 September, 2016 for provision of Courier
Services to health facilities countrywide. However, from April, 2019 to September, 2019,
the firm was overpaid by Kshs 19352 250 The amount had not been recovered as
30 June, 2021 and no explanation was provided for the anomaly

Consequently, the propriety and accuracy of distribution costs of Kshs. 762 426,595 could
not be confirmed.

6. Long Qutstanding Balances

6.1. Account Receivables

The statement of financial position reflects receivables from exchange transactions
balance of Kshs. 5,863 800,694 (2020 - Kshs.6,605,189,547) which, as disclosed in Note
21 to the financial statements, includes long outstanding receivables balance of
Kshs.4,362,709 769 owed by various agencies which has been outstanding for more than
ninety (80) days

6.2. Account Payables

Further, the statement reflects trade and other payables from exchange transactions
balance of Kshs.7,015,398.881 which, as disclosed in Note 25 to the financial statements,
includes operations creditors’ balance of Kshs, 180,784,194 out of which an amount of
Kshs. 36,370,448 has been long outstanding since year 2012. In addition, trade creditors
- medical balance of Kshs.2, 786,573 806 includes an amount of Kshs 250,044,341 which
has been outstanding for over one year while the supplier funds retained balance of
Kshs 21,639,338 includes an amount of Kshs.10.977 838 dating back 01 July, 2012,

Consequently, the recoverability of the account receivables and the validity of the trade
payables balances as at 30 June, 2021 could not be confimed

7. Unsupported Expired Inventories

As disclosed under Note 23 to the financial statements, the statement of financial position
reflects inventory balance of Kshs.17,558,528 935 The balance constitules expired
stocks worth Kshs 328 237,158 out of which an amount of Kshs 191 870834 was
financed by KEMSA Capital Fund while the balance of Kshs, 136,366,324 by third parties.
The expired stocks were not disclosed in the annual reports and financial statements of
the expired stocks, Management did not indicate the reasons for expiry of stock worth
Kshs 114,380 834

Further, the expired stock balance constitutes COVID-19 stock worth Kshs. 124,513 400
However, the supporiing schedule provided for audit lacked crucial details such as the
receiving dates, their location, date of the manufacture, unit of the manufacture, batch
number, pallet number, shelf life and the reasons for expiry.
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In absence of any justification and disclosure of expired stocks, the accuracy and
completeness of the financial statements for the year ended 30 June, 2021 could not be
confirmed.

8. Unsupported Trade and Other Payables

The statement of financial position reflects trade and other payables from exchange
transactions amounting to Kshs. 7,015,398 881 which, as disclosed in Note 25 to the
financial statements, includes trade creditors totalling to Kshs.2 588,017 506 that lacked
invoices, goods received notes and respective stock cards.

Consequently, the accuracy, validity and completeness of trade and other payables from
exchange transactions of Kshs.2 588,017,506 could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit
Institutions (I55Als). | am indepandent of the Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA,)
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. | have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilties in accordance with the ISSAl and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to perfarming audits of financial statements in Kenya. | believe
that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my adverse opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no ather key audit matters
to report in the year under review,

Other Matter
Unresolved Prior Year Matters

In the audit report of the previous year and in the Special Audit Report on KEMSA, several
rssues were raised. However, the Management has not resolved the issues or given
satisfactory explanation for failure to adhere to the provisions of the Public Sector
Accounting Standards Board templates and The National Treasury and Planning Circular
Ref AG 4/16/2 Vol 3{72) dated 30 June. 2021.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, because of the significance of the
matters discussed in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of
Public Resources sections of my report, based on the audit procedures performed, |
confirm that public resources have not been applied lawfully and in an effective way.
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Basis for Conclusion
1. Unexplained Loss of Revenue

As disclosed in Note 3 to the financial statements, the statement of financial performance
reflects a balance of Kshs. 1,317,254, 777 in respect of net sales amived at after deducting
the total cost of sale balance of Kshs.6,905,579,004 from the total sales balance of
Kshs B 222 833 780, Analytical review performed revealed that sales revenue from
phamaceutical products amounted to Kshs. 2,070,014 128 (2020 — Kshs 4,066, 305,161)
while the corresponding cost of input on the pharmaceutical products was
Kshs 1,853,919 861 However, a companson of cost versus revenue revealed various
pharmaceuticals inputs procured at Kshs 14,133 303 were sold at Kshs. 12,320 965
resulting to unexplained loss of Kshs, 1,803 338

In the circumstances, it has not been established whether value for money was achieved.

2, Non-Compliance with the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act, 2015

As disclosed in Note 3 to the financial statements, the statement of financial performance
reflects cost of sales amounting to Kshs. 6 905,579,004 which includes cost of sales on
Non- Pharmaceuficals amounting to Kshs. 1,770,542 066 and Pharmaceuticals inputs
amounting to Kshs. 1,853 919,861, Analytical review performed revealed the following
unsatisfactory matters:

i} The cost of sales on non- pharmaceuticals and Pharmaceuticals inputs amounting to
Kshs.536,752,879 and Kshs. 95439 349 respectively, were procured through direct
procurement method contrary to Section 103 (2) of the Public Procurement and Asset
Disposal Act, 2015 which reguires that the method is applied in circumstances where
goods, works or services are available only from a particular supplier or contractor and
due to the urgency of supplies

i) Further, non- pharmaceuticals and Pharmaceuticals inputs worth Kshs 368 536,692
and Kshs. 178,440 091 respectively, were delivered after the due dates. The delays
ranged between fifteen (15) days to six hundred and eighteen (618) days.

i) Further, the cost of sales on pharmaceutical inpuls constitutes COVID-19 items which
were acquired through direct procurement method without any justification contrary to
Section 48 (4) (c) of the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act, 2015. Three
suppliers who won bids worth Kshs 258,974 400 through direct procurement were not
in the prequalified list of suppliers, There was no evidence that any market survey was
carmed out and no reports on the direct procurements of values exceeding five
hundred thousand shillings (Kshs.500,000) was made lo the Public Procurement
Regulatory Authority as required by the law

W) The cost of sales on non-pharmaceutical inputs includes procurement valued at
Kshs. 211,019,769 which relates to addendum contracts that were varied and signed
before the lapse of twelve (12) months contract period. This is contrary to Section 139
(b) of the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act, 2015 which provides that no

Repor! af the Auditor-General o Kemea Medica! Supplier Authorine (KEMSAT for the veor endied 30 e, 2027
&




contract price shall be varied upwards within twelve months from the date of the
signing of the contracts.

v¥) The cost of sales on Mon-Pharmaceutical inputs balance includes purchase of
dispensing envelopes (khaki) worth Kshs, 10 534,000, However, two Members in the
Opening Committee did not have letters appointing them to the Committee. This is
contrary to Section 78(1) of the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act, 2015
which provides that, An Accounting Officer of a procuring entity shall appoint a Tender
Opening Committee specifically for the procurement.

vi) The cost of sales further constitutes purchases of pharmaceutical and non -
pharmaceuticals goods from fourteen (14) suppliers worth Kshs. 1,062, 371,472, The
purchases were based on expired confracts based on a memao dated 14 August, 2020
which extended the contracts to facilitate additional call down. Howewer, the
extensions were not based on the recommendation of an Evaluation Committee. This
is contrary to Section 1389(2) of Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act, 2015
which states that an Accounting Officer of a procuring entity, on the recommendation
of an Evaluation Committee, may approve the request which request shall be
accompanied by a cerificate from the tenderer making a justification for such cost—
{a) extension of contract period.

In the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

3.  lIrregular Extension of Contracts
3.1. Extension of Distribution Contracts

As disclosed in Note 9 to the financial statements, the statement of financial performance
reflects distribution costs balance of Kshs.B59 488 800. Included in this amount is
Kshs.738,510,884 paid to suppliers under outsourced distribution costs. However, the
expendilure was based on double extension of contracts for mare than thirty (30) days.

3.2. Extension of Insurance Covers

Further, the statement of financial performance reflects insurance expenses of
Kshs. 158,102,627 which, as disclosed in Note 10 to the financial statements, includes
insurance costs balance of Kshs 15,785,502 out of which Kshs. 4 261,566 relates to
extension of insurance covers. The contracts were extended for more than thirty (30) days
without review of the contract implementation and approval by the Board of Directors.

This is cantrary to Section 88 (3) of the Public Procurement and Assat Disposal Act, 2015
which provides that an extension under subsection (1) shall be restricted to not more than
thirty days (30) and may only be done once,

In the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.
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4. lrregular Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment

The statement of fnancial position reflects property, plant and machinery of
Kshs.7 167,704 659 which, as disclosed in Note 33(a) to the financial statements,
includes an amount of Kshs 960 283 859 in respect of addition to plant and machinary,
Review of the balances revealed that the balance includes procurement of laboratory
equipment valued at Kshs. 5,438,354 for items procured using restricted tender. Fifteen
{15] firms had submitted bids but only three (3) were evaluated as responsive out of which
the highest bidder was awarded. However, the lowest bidder was disqualified based on
conditions which had not been included in the initial bid documents. This is contrary to
Regulation 184 of the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Regulations, 2015 requires
that a procuring entity shall use standard asset disposal documents.

In the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law

5. Staff on Secondment

The statement of financial performance reflects employee cost of Kshs 1,264 329 720
which, as disclosed in Note 8 to the financial statements, includes payment of salaries
amounting to Kshs.8.682 676 to five (5) staffs who were on secondment and had served
for more than six (B) years in the capacity without explanations for continued contract
extensions. This is contrary to Part B.33(1) of the Public Service Commission (PSC)
Human Resource Policies and Procedures Manual, May, 2016 which provides that
secondment of officers from the public service to other organizations is applicable to
pensionable officers, for a period not exceeding three (3) years and may be renewable
once.

In the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law,

The audit was conducted in accordance with |SSAl 4000, The standard requires that |
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit o oblain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion

REFPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Publc Audit Act, 2015, because of the significance
of the matters discussed in the Basis for Conclusion on Effectivenass of Internal Controls,
Risk Management and Governance sections of my report, based on the audit procedures
performed, | confirm that internal contrals, risk management and governance were not
effective.

Hepord of the Anditor-Ciemerad on Kemea .1-.|'ﬁ|"1'|,.'.|.|.|'."|'r.||r1lp.|'1'r-. Authority TKEMIA) for r.kf_n.'u.r waapled 30 e, 202
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Basis for Conclusion

1. Weakness in Cash Management system

As disclosed in Note 14 to the financial statements, the statement of financial
performance reflects staff travel expenses of Kshs. 124,014,172 Examination of sampled
payment vouchers revealed issuance of imprest before previous ones are surrendered or
recovered in full from the salary. Further, the schedules presented for audit to support
hire of taxi, staff travel lacked key details such as nature of the activities, location, purpose
and number of days

Consequently, the existence of an effective internal control system could not be confirmed

2. Realized Exchange Loss

The statement of financial performance reflects other operating expenses of
Kshs. 398,193,149 which, as disclosed under Note 19 to the financial statements, includes
bank charges and commission realized forex exchange loss of Kshs 174,723,450 which
exposed the Authorty to financial loss and no mitigating measures have been put in place.

In the circumstances, the management of fiscal responsibilities and controls of projecting,
analyzing and hedging forex exchange losses are weak.

4. Weak Governance of the Authority

The financial statements under fiduciary management indicates that key departments are
headed by officers in acting capacity for more than six (6) months who have been paid
cumulative salary of Kshs 29,703,231, This contrary to Section C.14 (1) of the Human
Resource Policies and Procedures Manual for the Public Service 2016 states that "when
an officer is eligible for appointment to a higher post and is called upon to act in that post
pending advertisement of the post, he is eligible for payment of acting allowance at the
rate of twenty percent {20%) of his substantive basic salary and the acting allowance will
not be payable to an officer for more than six (6) months.

Under circumstances, firm and effective decision-making mechanism could not be
established

4. Unapproved Staffing

As disclosed in Note B to the financial statements, the statement of financial performance
reflects employee cost of Kshs 1,264,329 720, The Authorty has an approved staff
establishment of three hundred and forty-one (341) staff. However, the staff register
indicates that a total of nine hundred and eleven (911) employees in place resulting to
unapproved staffing of five hundred and seventy (570).

Under the circumstances, it 1s not clear how the Authority identified the staffing needs
thereby employing five hundred and seventy (570) extra members of staff which poses a
risk of bloated staffing, duplication of duties which constraing Authority's finances

ﬁ‘.q-'r.'ar.' aof the Auditor-Cieneral oo .'u'r:l.ru Macdica ."l:nllr.lpllj'-w Autheowety (K EMSA) for |'|II|.-'_'|'I.'|'.IF ended 30 Juee, 1021
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The audit was conducted in accordance with 1S5A1 2315 and 155A1 2330, The standard
requires that | plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, sk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all matenal respects. | believe that the audit evidence | have
obtained s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion,

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis}) and for maintaining effective internal control as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control, risk management and governance.

In prepanng the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Authaority's ability to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to dissolve the Authority or to cease operations..

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

in addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activites, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authonties which govern them, and that public rescurces are
applied in an effective way,

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Authority financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibiliies in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment,

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial
staternents as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or eror,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 155Als will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could

Repewt of the Audiror-Ceneral onr Kenver Wedical! Sippltes Awtharity {KEMWSAR for the vear eoded 30 Same, 2021
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reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

In addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all matenal respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them, and that public resources are applied
in an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(8) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, | consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the |SSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions,

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the rnsk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may detenorate,

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAls, | exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misslatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
fargery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matenal uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Authority's
ability to sustain its services. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am
required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the

Roprort of the Analitere-Ciomeral on Kernva Medioal Suppiies Authewity (KEMWSAL for the year ended 30 Jume, 2021
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financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Authority to cease to
sustain its services.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Authority to express an opinion en the financial statements.

» Perform such other procedures as | consider necessary in the circumstances.

| communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that are identified during the audit,

| also provide Management with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought o bear on my independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

CPA . CBS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Mairobi

19 July, 2022

Reponrt oof thr Apciter-Generad on Kenva Medical Supplies duthority (KEMSA) for the vear ended 30 Sune, 2027
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13. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Financial year Financial year
Note FY 2020-2021 200 9-2020
Kahs Kshs
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Grants from National Governmenk 1 125,001,000 653, 239, 994
Public contributions and dona tions 21 6, 383 6309 B.044,545
131,383,639 61,254, 541

Revenue from exchange transactions
Mot Sales ] | 1,317,254, 777 18184297, 228
Rendering of Services 4 1,543,484 208 1.624,822,909
Rental Revenue 5 11,205,348 14,569,878
Finance Income 6 616,085 B47 480,361 413
Other Incomae 7 64,299,118 88,996,228

3,552,329.297 4,036,747 555
Tatal revenue A,683,712.936 4,698,032, 19
Expenses
Employee costs 8 1,264,329,720 1.083,420,635
Dristribution Costs 859,488,800 772369557
Insurance costs 10 159,102,627 92,417,174
Rental expenses 11 217,175,902 181,481 365
Legal expenses 12 99,993 RA7 130, 772928
Litilithes ex penses 13 18,933,084 20,947,539
Staff travel expenses 14 124,014,172 154,044 559
Finance costs 15 1,7RB.6T0 2,189,097
Aoudit fees 1 3,500,000 3,500,000
BOD expenses 17] 17,681,305 10,954,944
Depreciation & amortization 18 117 830,125 161,179,098
Other Operating Expenses 19 198,193,149 411,440,778
Total expenses 3.282,011,396 034,638,576
Other gaing/{losses) F -
Surplus before tax 401,701,540 1,663,393,620
Taxation
Surplus for the period 401,701 540 1,663,393, 620
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14. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2021
Financial Year | Financial Year
Mote 2020,/2021 20192020
Kshs Kshs
Asgels
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 20 B,113,988,990| 10,453,522,589
Recervables from exchange transactions 21 5,863 800,694 b, 605, 189,547
Reveivables from non-exchange transactions P 4.430.114 528371687
Inventories 3 17.558,529,935 17,738,279 406
Total current assets 31.540.749.734| 35.325,363,229
Mon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment LER Y 7.167.704,659 £,341.530,305
Intangible assets 33 (b 3,557,704 :
Long Term Deposit 24 5AE15,430 48,515,430
Total non-current asscts 7.225,077,795 6,390.045,735
Total assets 38,765,827,529] 41,715,408,964
Liabilities
Current habilities
Trade and other pavables from exchange 25 015298881 | 6,879,649 361
Trade and other payables from non exchange b 2,761,333
Payment Received in Advance par ) 3025 877.008:  V.594,224 973
Current Provisions 2B = 167,673,093 117,961,863
Project Fund 29 : 45,723,831 29 (5,65
Medical Commaodity Fund M 0356, 110,719 H,920,214, 764
Total current liabilities 19.013,544.935| 23,541.116,031
Mon-current labilities
Deferred income E¥ 798,174,974 58,146,334
Total nom-current liabilities 798,174,974 558,146,334
Total liabilities 20,411,719,910] 23,599,262 366
Met assets 18,354, 107,619 | 18,116,146,599
KEMSA Capital 32 BARLETA303 | E.d6 I,S?ﬁ,]ﬂ.‘n'
Accumulated Funds 256,950,298 256,950,208
Revenue reserves B.851,950562 | 8,613,989542
Eevaluation reserve 7B, 630456 783,630,456
Total net assets and liabilities 38,765,827 529 | 41,715,408,9%5
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Signature i i

Mary Chao Mwadime

CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD
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15. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Balance as at 1st July 2007

| Revaluation Surplus

| Surplus for the perind

i Balance as at 30th June 2018
Revaluation Surplus
Surplus for the perind
Balance as at 30th June 2019
Surplus for the period
Balance as at 30th June 2020
Prior Year Adjustment
Surplus tor the period

: Balance as at 30TH JUNE 2021

Attributable to the owners of the controlling entity

KEMSA Capital
Kshs

B.461,576,303

8,461,576,303

8,461,576,303

B.461,576,303

B.461.576,303

Reservies

Accumulated
Funds

Fshs

256,950,298

256,950,298

256,950,298

256,950,298

256,950,298

Revenue Reserve

Kshs

4.962,592,613

B37, 296,594

3,799,889,207

1.150.706,715
6,950,595,922
1.663,393,620
8,613,989,542
(163,.740,520)
401,701,540
8,851,950,562

Revaluation
Reserve
Kshs

783,630,456

763,630,456

763,630,456

783,630,456

783,630,456

Total

Kshs

14,464,74%.670

15,302,046,264

16,452,752,979

15,116,146,599

15,354,107 619
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16. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE

2021
Financial Year
Minbe FY BNy FY. 200500
Kshs Kahs
|EH1'I flovws from operating sctivities
Receipts
| Grwnbs From Mational Govermiment i 125, (M0 LEXD B53, 235, 1% kG
Public contrbmitions and donatiaons 2 ", M8, B4, 505
Mt Sales | 1,517 2584, 777 R LR el ]
Rendering of Services i 1,543,481, 508 CEE
Rental Revenue 5 11,305, 48 14, %5 RTH
| Finance fncome i f1] 6, (185 HeT 489,081,413
ﬂﬂ'lﬂ h'lﬂln'l-t' 7 i, 2L 1R BE, G0, 20
Total Redeipts LERE TIZ 936 4 EE A2 15 |
Fayments
Emploves costs K 1.2l AT 1083 AN 635
Dastribotion Costs 9 R ARH B T723 557
Insuramce costs 1 I'fi‘-l.ﬂ.'ll_l.bz?' SLALT 174
Fental expinmes i1 217,175,502 1H1 &H1. 365
| Legal exponses 12 00,003 §17 138,772,928
L'idlities expenses i3 TR, 975 (1 ), BaT 530
Stafl travel expenses 14 124,014,172 154,044 5549
Finance costs 15 1, 768,67 2,189 a7
| Audit fovs 16 3,500,000 3, 5MLO0N)
BOD expenses i ¥ 17, 6REL, MG 10,554,544
Dhrprreciation & amaortization I8 117,830,125 il TP AH
Other Operating Expenses 19 R TS 149 41400 7TH
Total Expenses 3, 232,1][1,.!-9& 308 638 570
MNet Surplus iﬂl-?ﬂl.-'i'l'ﬂ 16603593 A0
Do rmase /(B iense ) in Curreit Assels 1445 070 B0G RT3 234 07
nicrease / [Dheenzase) in Curmest Liabilities 13.43?,:1’:’1,:&1‘ 11,542,906, 788
nerease f (Decrease]) in Defermed oo me TR feli) (H Ak, 545
Asir] lhhpdﬁﬂll;"ﬁﬂ"rl LA
Dhepreciation & .lrmmu:.qllnrl 18 17 ANE1LES 161,179, (98
In cash sppport on Expemsditgm
Mot cash flows from operiting soivities {1,222 9%, 5% EEZ, 153,914
Cash Mows wsed In investbng activithes %
Purchase of property, plant, squipment and intangible poats ['iﬁ-I_Tﬁl,lFJI‘}] (1,366,003, 71 24
Procesds From Disposal OF Flued Assets
Increase / decrease in non curment nsoeivable {5,500 (00,210, 8e4
Met cash flows ased In Investing activities Wmﬂ?ﬁ il .:mﬂ
Cash Flows from Finmancing -Ii:"l"\l'“lnl-
KEMSA Capital = =
Revaluation Surplus - =
Mt cash Mows used in financing activities = -
Met increasef[dectzase) in cash and cash equivalents {2,055 oW FRECITTTEET]
Cash arad cash exuivilents st 1 July 2020 100,453, 5202 S f, WMLR1 3, 2]
nsh and cash squivabents ol 30 June 2 20 B.I13, 958,990 10,453,522,590 |
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17. STATEMENT OF COMPARISON BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30TH JUNE 2021
Actual on
Performance
Orriginal Budget | Adjustments | Final Budget E‘uu;i:;:hle Difference | % of Utilization
2020/2021 | 2020/2021 20202021 202042021 20202021
INCOME Ksh.000's | Ksh.000's | Ksh.000's Ksh.000's Ksh.000's
« ittt
Grants from National Government 250,00 I (125,000) 125,000 125,000 100,00 %
Publbic contributions and donations - - 6,384 h 384
;
Mot Sakes 1,229 361 " . 1,229 361 1317255 B7.B94 107.15%
Oither Income 2,204,153 - 2,104,153 2,235,075 LR g 101.40%
TOTAL INCOME 3,683,514 [B25,0040) 3,554,514 3,683,713 125,199
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Actual an Perf —
Original Budget | Ad Final Bud R
riginal Budget | Adjustments udget f“ﬂ:“‘ Difference | % of Utilization
2020/2021 202042021 20202021 202072021 2020/2021
Payments Ksh.000's Ksh.000's | Ksh.0D0's Ksh.000's Ksh.000's
Staff Costs 1,199,280 £3,948 1,265,728 1,264,330 R 99.93%
Distribution Costs 96y, 1R (106,664) £59.54 RS9 489 45 G a0y,
Insurance cosls 141,500 17849 155340 158,103 27 0 REY,
Rental expenses 145,966 68,245 217.211 217176 35 G R,
Legal expenses 100,000 140 100,140 99,994 146 54 85%
Utilithes expenses 0,282 9715 18,997 18,933 i 0 GRS
Staff travel expenses 124,742 (B50Y 124,092 124,014 7 L
Finance costs 2 (842)| 2,128 1,769 360 83.10%
Audit fees i, Aih {2.941) 3525 3500 25 59 29%
BOD expenses 14,420 4473 18.893 17.681 1,212 93,59%
Despreciation & amortization 147,960 {20,810) 118,150 117,830 320 99 73%
Other Operating Expenses 423,898 {25,464 J4H,434 398,193 241 99,94 %
TOTAL EXPENSES 3,285,683 i,u}[ 3,265,683 3,282,011 3,671
SURPFLUS FOR THE PERIOD 3978311 = 27281 401,702 121,528
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18.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

KEMSA is established by and derives ils authority and accountability [rom KEMSA Act of 2013,
KEMSA s wholly owned by the Government of Kenya and is domiciled in Kenya, KEMSA's
["Tim'i]"'.’” activity is Procurement, Warchousing and Distribution of Health Products and
Technologies to Public health facilities,

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

I'he financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the
measurement at re-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipment, al fair
value, impaired assets al their estimated recoverable amounts and actuarially determined

liabilities at their present valoe.

The finamncial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenva Shillings, which is the

functional and reporting currency of KEMSA.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, the State
Corporations Act, KEMSA act 2013 and International Public Sector Accounting Standards
(IPSAS). The accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied to all the years

presented.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
3 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS
i New and amended standarids and interprelations in {ssue effective in the year ended 30 Jane

2021.

ther Applicable: 1% January 2021:
Improvements to : :
] a) Amendments to [PSAS 13, to include the appropriate references to
IPSAS y B . . _

[IPSAS on impairment, in place of the current references 10 other

international and/ or national accounting frameworks.

b) IPSAS 13, Leases and IPSAS 17, Property, Plant, and BEquipment.
Amendments to remove transitional provisions which should have
been deleted when [PSAS 33, First Time Adoption of Accrual Basis

Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSASs) was

[ntermatiomal

approved.

c) IPSAS 21, Impairment of Non-Cash-Generaling Assets and [PSAS 26,
Impairment of Cash Generating Assets,
Amendments o ensure consistency of impairment ﬂu.:iu.l.mx:r Loy account
for revalued assets in the scope of IPSAS 17, Property, Plant and

Equipment and [PSAS 31, Intangible Assots.

d) IPSAS 33, First-time Adoption of Accrual Basis International Public
Sector Accounting Standards ([PSASs).
Amendments 1o the implementation guidance on deemed cost in

IPSAS 33 to make it consistent with the core principles in the Standard.
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

i, New amd amended standards and (nlerpretations in issue bul not yet effective tn the year
enided 30 June 2021

IPSAS 41: Applicable: 1¥ January 2023:
Financial > P i . oo . . .
The objective of IPSAS 41 is to establish principles for the financial reporting of
Instruments .
financial assets and liabilities that will present relevant and useful information
o users of financial statements for their assessment of the amounts, ming and
uncertainty of an entity’s future cash flows.
IPSAS 41 provides users of financial statements with more useful information
than IPSAS 29, by:
* Applying a single classification and measurement model for financial
assets thal considers the characteristics of the asset’s cash [lows and the
objective for which the asset is held;
* Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss model that is
applicable to all financial instruments subject to impairment testing; and
* Applving an improved hedge accounting model that broadens the
hedging arrangements in scope of the guidance. The model develops a
strong link between an entity's risk management strategies and the
accounting  treatment  for  instruments held as part of the risk
management sirategy.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
IP5AS 42: Applicable: 1# January 2023

Social Benofits
. - The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful

representativeness and comparability of the information that a reporting entity
provides in ils financial statements about social benefits. The information
prowided should help users of the financial statements and general purpose

linancial reports assess:
{a) The nature of such soctal benefits provided by the entity;
(b} The key features of the operation of those social benefit schemes; and

(¢} The impact of such social bepefits provided on the entity's financial

perlormance, financial position and cash flows,

Amendments to - Applicable: 1st January 2023:
Cthe SAS .
i s a) Amendments to IPSAS 5 to update the guidance related to the

resulting  from ; ; . ;
components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently omitted when

PSAS 41, 'z .
’ IPSAS 41 was issued,
Financial o :
b} Amendments to IPSAS 3), regarding illustrative examples on hedging
[nstruments

and credit risk which were inadvertently omitted when [PSAS 41 was
sl
¢)  Amendments to [PSAS 30, to update the guidance for accounting for
financial guarantee contracts which were inadvertently omitted when
IPSAS 41 was issued.
Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classifying financial
instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS which were inadvertently

omitted when [PSAS 41 was issued,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
i, Early adoption of standards

The entity did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in vear 2020/ 2021.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principle accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out

below:
a) Revenue Recognition
i Revenue from non-exchange transactions
= Fees

KEMSA recognizes revenues from fees, when the event occurs and the assel recognilion criteria ane
mt. To the extent that there is a related condition attached that would give rise to a Hability to repay
the amount, deterred income is recogniced instead of revenue. Other non-exchange revenuaes are
recognized when it is probable that the future economic benelits or service potential associated with
th asset will flow to KEMSA and the fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

s  Transfers from other government entities

Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measured at
fair value and recopnized on {:lhl:ainlng contral of the asset {rnsh, gun':n:lﬁ, services anc
property ) if the transter is free from conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits
or service potential related to the asset will flow to the entity and can be measured reliably.

Recurrent grants are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.
Development/capital grants are recognized in the statement of Hnancial position and
realised in the statement of comprehensive income over the useful life of the assets that has
been acquired using such funds.

i) Revenue from exchange transactions
* Rendering of services

KEMSA recognizes revenue from rendering of services by reference to the stage of completion when
the outcome of the transaction can be estimated reliably.

Where the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognized only to the extent
that the expenses incurred are recoverable,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
o Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer, wsually on delivery of the goods and when the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential
associabed with the transaction will flow 10 KEMSA

=  Interest Income

[nterest income is accrued using the effective vield method, The effective yvield discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s et carrying
amount. The method applies this vield o the principal outstanding to determine interest income
each period,

Kental income

KEMSA recognized income from tenants who inhabited its warchouses in the period ending 30
June 2021, Rental income has been recognized on the accrual basis of accounting.

b} Budgel Information

The original budget for FY 2020-2021 was approved by the National Assembly in June 2020,
Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget in accordance
wilh specific approvals from the appropriate authorities, The additional appropriations are added
to the original budget by the entity upon receiving the respective approvals in order to conclude the
final budget.

The annual budget is prepared on the accrual basis, that is, all planned costs and income are
presented in a single statement to determine the needs of KEMSA. As a result of the adoption of the

accrual basis for budgeting purposes, there are no basis, timing or entity differences that would
require reconciliation between the actual comparable amounts and

the amounts presented as a separate additional financial statement in the statement of comparison
of budget and actual amounts,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

¢} Taxes
Current incomae bax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected
ter be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, The lax rates and tax laws used to compute
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the area
where the Entity operates and generates taxable income. Current income tax relating to ilems
recogmized directly in nel assets is recognized in nel assets and not in the statement of finandal
performance. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions

whire J]."PH"""FI:I!E"

d) In-Kind Contributions

Im-kind contribultions are donations that are made to the KEMSA in the form of su pport programs,
equipment, funds, plant and motor vehicles,

g} Property, Plant and Equipment

All categories of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items, When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the entity recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection s performed, its cost is
recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition
criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recogrized in surplus or deficit as
incurred, Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil or nominal consideration
the asset is initally measured at its fair value,

Certain categories of property, plant and equipment are subsequently carried at re-valued amounts,
being their fair value at the date of re-valuation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Where re-measurement al re-valued amounts is desired, all items in an asset
category are re-valued through valuations carried out by independent external valuer. I the
carrying amount of a class of assets is increased as a result of a revaluation, the increase shall be
credited directly to revaluation surplus,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

However, the increase shall be ncognized in surplus or deficit o the extent that it reverses a
reviluation decrease of the same class of assels previously recognized in surplus or deficit.

If the carrving amount of a class of assets is decreased as a resull of a revaluation, the decrease is
recognized in surplus or deficit. However, the decrease shall be debited directly to revaluation
surplus to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that class
i assets,

Gains and losses on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment are determined by
comparing the proceeds [rom the disposal with the net carrving amount of the items, and are
recopnized in profit or loss in the income statement.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is recognized in the income statement on a Straight-
line basis to write down the cost of each asset or the re-valued amount to 1S residual value over its

estimiatiod useful libe, The annual rates o ase ane

[ease hold [Land No depreciation
Buildings 25%
Motor vehicles 25%
Fixtures and tittings 125%
Furniture 125%
Equipment 125%
Flant and Machinery 10%
Computers 33.3%
Intangible Assels 33.3%

Depreciation and impairment ol property, pJnnt and e uiprment
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {(continued)

ltems of property, plant and equipment are reviewed annually for impairment, Where the carrying,
amount of an asset is asseased as greater than its estimated recoverable amount, an impairment loss

is recognized so that the assel is written down immediately o its estimated recoverable amount.

f) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets comprise purchased computer software licenses, and rebranding achivities, which
are capitalized on the basis of costs incurred to acquire and bring to use. These costs are amortized
ovier the estimated useful life of the intangible assets from the year that they are available for use,
usually over three years.

Amortization is calculated on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of computer

software of throee years,

All computer software is reviewed annually for impairment. Where the carrying amount of an
intangible asset is assessed as greater than its estimated recoverable amount, an

impairment [oss is recogniced so that the asset s written down immediately to its estimated

recoverable amouni,

£ Inventories

[mventory 18 measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was received
through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost of the inventory is its
fair value at the date of scquisition. The cost of inventories comprises purchase price, import duties,
transportation and handing charges, and is determined on the actual price method. After initial
recognition, imventory s measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value, However, o the
extent that a class ol inventory is distributed or

deployed at no charge or for a nominal charge, that class of inventory is measured at the lower of
cosl and current replacement cosl,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
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MNet realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary (o make the sale, exchange, or
distribution.

h) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service
potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation,

Where the Entity expects some or all of a provision to be reimbumsed, for example, under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when the

reimbursement s virtually certain.

I'he expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of financial performance net of

any reimbursemient.

i Contingent liabilities

The Entity does not recognize a contingent liability, but discloses details of any contingencies in the
notes 1o the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying,

economic benefits or service potential is remote.
il Contingent assets

Fhe Entity does not recognize a contingent asset, bul discloses details of a possible asset whose
existence is contingent on the eccurmence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Entity in the notes to the financial statements, Contingent assels
are assessed contimaally to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the financial
stabements. [ it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benetits or service potential
will arise and the assel’s value can be mwasured reliably, the asset and the related revenue are
recognized in the financial statements of the period inwhich the change ocours.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
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k) Nature and purpose of reserves

a) Accumulated Funds

These are the realized surpluses over the years when the  Authority was fully dependent on the
National Government for its operations. The Accumulated funds were specifically meant for
cushioning the organization against any shortfall in Grants in the subsequent years.

b} Revaluation RHeserves

These arose from past revaluation of different classes of property, plant and equipment. The purpose
of the reserve is t» cushion the authority against any decrease in the carrying amounts of the assets
arising trom future revaluations,

) Surplus/Deficit
I'hese are accumulated surpluses rom income and expenditures since the financial year 2010/2011,
The reserves are meant to finance future capital expenditures e.g. Construction of Modern
wirehouses in Nairobi and the Regional Depots.
I} Changes in accounting policies and estimates
The Entity recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively. The effects of

changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application s impractical.

m) Employee benefits

Retirement benefit plans

Ihe Entity provides retirement benefits for its emplovees and directors, Defined contribution plans
are post-emplovment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity {a lund), and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employes service in the
current and prior periods. The contributions to fund obligations for the payment of retirtement

benefits are charged against income in the year in which they become pavable.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

80




KeImsa

Fa

Annual Reports and Financial Statements

For the year ended lune 30, 2021

Dafined binefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined-contribution plans. The
defined benefit funds are actuarially valued tri-annually on the projected unit credit method basis.
Deficits identiticd are recovered through lump sum payments or increased future contributions on
proportional basis to all participating employers. The contributions and lump sum payments reduce

the post-employment benefit obligation.

n} Foreign Currency 1ransactions
I'ransactions in foreign currencies are initally accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange on the
date of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency are reported at
the statement of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on that date,
Exchange differences arising from the settlement of creditors, or from the reporting of creditors at
rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period, are recognized

a8 income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

o) Related parties
hit Entity regards a related party asa person or an entity with the ability to exert control individually
or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Enfity, or vice versa. Members of key
management are regarded as related parties and comprise the directors, the CEO and senior

l'l'l.:'ll'lilHL'I’b.

pl} Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on call and
highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are readily
comvertible to known amounts of cash and are subject 1o insignificant risk of changes in value, Bank
account balances mclude amounts held at the Central Bank of Kenya and at vanous commiencial

banks at the end of the financial year.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

81




Kemnmsa

P

Annual Reports and Financial Statements

For the year ended June 30, 2021

For the purposes of these financial statements, cash and cash equivalents also include short term
ciash imprests and advances o authorised public officers and/or institutions which were nol

surrendered or accounted for at the end of the financial year.

q) Comparative figures
Whore necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or

reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

r] Subsequent evenls
There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on the

financial statements for the vear ended June 30, 2021,
5. SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of the Entity's financial statements in conformity with [PSAS reguires
management to make judgments, estimales and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, exponses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabalities, at thi
end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in oulcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or

liability affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing 4 material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of asscts and liabilities within the next financial vear, are described below,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Significant Judgments and Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)
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The Entity based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated
linancial statements were prepared. However, exdsting circumstances and assumptions about future
developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arising bevond the control of

thi* Entity,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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| 1. Transfers from the Ministry

Ministry of Health | Amount Amount Amaount i Total Prior  year
recopnized o | deferred recognize | transfers 2005972020
statement of | under | in | 2020021
Fimancial | deferred Capital
prerormance imoogme Fund
|
| Kahs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs
GRANTS FROM MOH - | = I I
OPFERATIONS 125, 0000, D) - - 125,000,400 | 390,739,99%
GRANTS FROM MOH - | T
DEVELOPFMENT - - - - 2n2 506,000
Total Grants from National = =i n '
Crovernment 125, 00,000 - 25,000,000 | 653,239 9496
1. Transfers from the Ministy o )
FY 2020-2021 2011 92020
Kahs Kshs
GRANTS FROM MO - OPEREATIONS 125, (1 {0 Yo}, T30 By
GRANTS FROM MOH - DEVELOPMENT = 262 500, )
Total Grants from Mational Governmen 125, (a0 000 H53, 234 996
L Public Contributions and Donations
FY 2030-2021 201%-2020
Kahs Kshs
Income From Donations h, 383,630 044,545
Total Public Contributions and Donations 5,383,639 8,044,545
The recogmized mmoritd relnles do benefits ot hos aecried frome ase of dosaled Fied A ssels fo e Auflority by Shadegic
Partirers

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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3 Net Assets

i':id[i' Revemse -Pharmaceutical
Sale Revenue -Non-Pharmaceuticals
Galis Reverue -UNHC-Phamaceuticals

Sales Revenue-UHC-Non Pharmaceuticals
Total sales revenues

Cost of Sales

Cost of Sales UGS ([Pharms)

Cost of Sales (G5 (Non-Pharms)

Costof Sales-CGS-UHC (Pharms)

Cost of Sales-CGS-UHC (Non-Pharms)
Total cost of sales

Net Sales

FY 2020-2021 201 9-200
Kshs Kshs
2.070,014,129 4,066,315, 161
| 598 (80 253 1813485 429
2000, O [ gy .ed41.519.411
1,735,828 455 10003, 3%, 995
8,222 833,780 10581, 706, 99
1,453 919 861 3,337,254, 753
1,770,542 (b6 3,152,584 356
1,544 244 155 1324, 158,758
1,431 872 213 s 712400
b, 905,579,004 8,762,709, 7ol
1,317,254,777 1,518,997,225

The revenue eared and cost incureed n selling relales to sale of nedical eommodities to all public health
factlities m the counties and other supplemetary customers like Faith Based mstitutions and Unfversities.
Included in Cost of Sales is Ksh. 191,870,834 relating to Expired stocks apd Ksh, 54,175,813 for Donations.

4. Rendering of Services
FY 2020-2021 2079-2020
Kshs Kshs
Supply Chain Fees: -USAID 400,376,053 TE, 1949 (138
Lilobal Fumd Uk 352570 H38,54b, 301
-UNICEF 20,831,142 21,491,655
-Ministry af Health 177 204, 106 105,262,297
Lither Strategic Pariners 8700338 5,123 550
Total other income 1,543 454,208 1,624 822 909

Strategic pariners as listed aboue.

This revenue relate to fees eamed for Procurement, Warehousing and Distrilution services rendered to KEMSA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. Rental Revenue

FY 2020-2021 201%-2020
Kshs shs
Rental Income 11,205,348 14,569 878
:TI:I-II]. other income 11,205,348 14,569,878

Rental Income was received from KEMSA tenants Bollore and Kenya Afrvays during the Financial Year.

b. Finance Income

Bank Interest Received
Total other income

FY 2020-2021
Kshs
b16,085 847
b16,085847

2019-2020
Kshs
489,361 413
489,361,413

This s income eanted from the funds in the Authorities bank current accounts at negotinted inlerest rates,

7. Other Income

\Proceed From Disposal of Fixed Assets
'Sale of Tender Documents

Sale of Waste Materials

Forex Realized Gain

Dinect Revenue{MCT-Cost Recovery)
Other Miscellaneous Income

Dhisposal of Fied Assets

Total other income

FY 2020-2021 20782020
Kshs Kshs

616,125
115,000
- 175,305
11,461,706 24,192 553
50,174,089 47 403, (46
2663313 0373814
. 7,120,385
54,299,118 BB, 996,228

This are revenues earned from other sources as highlighted above
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E-Emplujrn* cuwsts

Bazic Tay

Cheerhime

Arrears

Hewse Allow ance

Acting; Allowance

Homus

Loave Alldwanoe
Enterlaimment Allowance
WSSF (Kemsa Part)
Cratuity and Pensions
Commities Allowances
"_l-|‘l|.q 1l ”ul:,.' Allowances
Fransport Allowance
‘Il'.flrhe:r Taxahle Benefits
Casual and Contract Employees
Ex-Ciratia Pavmeenty

Shift Allowance

Stall Seconded b Kemsa
Interrmship Stipends

Total employee costs

Fy 2020-2021 HN9-2020
Kshs Kshs
B0.404 55 P I ey
11,675 XX 15,154,811
R55,851 2o78 812
154,745,806 T, 167 ()
4,940,953 2. 153,547
a 287 987
B0622 5K 6,595 N
iy pper. 2514000
2. 238 1K) 2 88 Al
44,356,540 9,136,078
11427 2K 1 548 (K]
38,235 -
51111516 45,405,000
16,.518.528 11379032
- 215,780
| AKD2 5006 485,911
60618 23729 A6
B6H2 676 7E0a
531,010 2,467 394
1,264,329, 720 1,083,420,635

the budget

The employee costs expenditure for the financial year was Kshs 1.264 Billion which was a 100% absorption of

4, D¥istribution Costs

Fuel and 06l for owven Trucks
Pelaintemance of vwn Trucks
Insurance and Govt. Levies
Hire of Transport

Crutsoarced Distribution Cosis
Fuel and Oils

Vehicle Maintenance

YVohicle Irl.'u.i (r-1q i & 'If_-:l:wl l.{-\'il._-:l
Fork Lift Maintanance

Fork Lift Fuel and Oils

Total distribution cosis

FY 2020-321
Kshs

1,5939 623
2,138 5676
2649 500
#14,569.353
20,806,507
13,296 735
313,250
3622426
54351
A59 488,800

201%-2020

Kshs
2,566,155
GEH2.M1
234 500
T3, 720,653
18,347 .70l
11,888 468
1,211,917
2382841
29922

TT2.369557

The costs abore relales fo distribution of Health products and i

aligies which entity has outsourced for

programsie and sale activities
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1k Insurance costs

FY 2020-3021 20152020
Kshs Kshs
Medical Premioms 132 699, 034 FR215.M13
[msuranie Ex perses - premiums 26,303 554 14,201,361
Insurance Expenses - Policy Excess 100,000 -
Tolal insurance cosls 159,102,627 2417174
{The cost relates to medical insurance for staff and insurance covers for compamys' assefs
11. Rental expenses
FY 2020-2021 2N 8-2020
kshs Kshs
Warehouse Rend 217,175,502 TEL A6, %11
Hire of Space - X054
Tuotal rental expenses 217,175,902 181,441,305
This cosi relates to kired go down al Sun flag property investnient ltd and Kikora Lid
1L Legal Expenses
FY H20-2021 20159-HK20
Kehs Kshr
| .l.'?.nl Fains O Gy BAT 139,772,928
Total legal expenses 0% 2R3 BT 139,772,924
This expenditure relafes to I:irni' dpeals gnd settlement of couwrt cases,
13, Utilitles Expenses
FY 2020-221 20719-2020
Kahs Kshs
Waber and © oNSeTVancy Fom pensies Bug Tug 10K 4,534
Electricity & Lighting Exponses 15,795 502 13,287,328
| Generator Fucl & Maintenance 2238784 t,065,875
| Total utilities expenses 18,933,084 20,967,539
4. Staff travel expenses
FY 2032021 2019-2020
Kshs Kshs
Staff Travel Allowance - Local 114,895,257 128,008,487
Seaff Traviel Allowance - Inbera tonal - 7900, 560
Adr Tickets 4.411,670 E482.518
Hire of Taxi & Other Transport 4,707,265 B.385471
Mileage Claims -Lise Own Cars - 11,030
Travel and other Eelated Expenses-Donor Funded - 7050485
Total staff travel expenses 124014272 154,944 559

The cost relntes o cxpendifure during sales and progropoee acbivilies
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

15. Finance costs

FY 2020-2021 2019-2020
Kshs Kshs
Bank Charges 768,670 2189997
Tolal finance costs 1,768,676 2189997
16. Audil fees
FY 2020-2021 2019-2020
Kshs Kshs
Audit Fees & (thers 3,500,000 3,300,000
Total audit fees 3,500,000 3,500,000
117, Board exXpenses
| FY 2020-2021 2019-2020
Kshs Kshs
BOD Sitting & Lunch Allowances 8,544 000 5,938,200
. BOD Travel & Accommodation Exp. 5,945 585 9.7
| BOD Conferences 1,797,720 -
BOD Honorana & Other Allowances 1,044,000 1,044 000
Total BOD expenses 17,681,305 10,954,944
18, Depreciation & amortization
FY 2020-2021 2019-2020
Kshs Kshs
Buildings - Depreciation 32,588,150 39,349,097
Plant & Machinery - Depreciation 17 873421 18,482,774
Office Equipment - Depreciation 4,954 666 b.476,835
Fumiture & Fittings - Depreciation 471400 6,109,941
Computer Equipment - Depreciation 7854777 37,813,346
Intangible Assets - Depreciation 25428 B, D0
Motor Vehicles - Depreciation 49,521,674 32 881,105
Total depreciation & amortization 117,830,125 161,179,098
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19.0ther Dper?lin g Expenses

Training Expenses

Conference Expenses

Change Management Expenses
Recruitment Agency

Official Entertainment

Office Beverages

End Of -Year Staff Staff Party
Staff Support Expenses

Purchase OFf New Uniforms
Laundary and Cleaning
Telephone - Switchboard 115
Telephone - Direct Land Lines
Cell Phones

E-mail / Inbermiet

Postage & Courier

Computer Maintenance Expenses
Computer Maintanance Agreement
Computer Software and Licenses
Computer Stationery Expenses
Hire of Services - Security Firms
Hire of Services From Police
Security Equipment

Cleaning Matenals & Implement
Pest Control Expenses
Ouisourced Clening Expenses
Sanitation Expenses

Plant Repairs & Maintenance
Repairs To Buildings and Roads
Purchase of Tools & Maintenance
Rates Paid To The Local Govt.

Reagents

FY 2020-2021
Kshs
16,181,006
7,940,795

16,921 555
6,900,734
9,424,000
4430335

11,913
7,900
3,370,128
250
9,509,500
4,174,661
577,304

2442816
3,089,612
5,853 685
5,461 473

15,776,187
3,447,000

932,516
2,056,952
1,127,802
4,661,764

543,782

803,743

3,576,840
1,634,031
1,058,611
8,639,560

2019-2020
Kshs

22,044, 208
421,778
7097000
3,295 560
20265413
9,394 807
12,963,660
1,935,592
1,420,352
73,840
3,375,805

8,909,348
7.956,657
187,285
6,168 M2
2405372
7,151 855
9,308,922
11,188 900
3,781,500
502,680

2 206, 148
763,660
4,737 461
2 605,070
264877
3,028,533
1,871,378

242,224
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NOTES TD THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Third Party Services
Maintenance OF QA Tools & Equipment
Palleting cost
Packaging Material and Expenses
Protective Clothing & Gear
Cost -Disposing Damage Stock
Stationery Expenses
Office Expenses
General Admin expenses
Statf Subsscription Expenses
Statutory Subscriptions
Fire Fighting & Safety Equipment
Hire of Safety training Serv
Bank Charges And Commission - Realized Loss
Penalties And Fines
Consultancy
Public Relations Expenses
Donations
Sponsorships
Shows And Exhibitions
Communication & Infor. Exp.
Advertising Expenses
Corporate & Other Calenders
Advertising Of Tenders
Publicity & Advertising Expenses
Newspaper Expenses
lournals, Books & Periodicals
Total other operating expenses

74152493 19321127
2783075 133214
2 7,140,000
10,026,476 14,525,043
4,616,355 B62,391
1,970,279 2,995,605
G419 029 13,926,615
3,604,308 5,804,164
- 771862
1,357,790 1,364,241
555 500 4493 500
7400495 2.222.024
423,187 S, 000
174,723,450 03,238,620
5,109,232 12,000
7133125 23,767 436
1,260,200 6,133,497
1,696,500 237,000
. 3,950,000
- 150,800

2,091,497 -

1,196,819 11,135,203
3,202 500 3,341,500
B,359 486 16,704,620
2 883850 1,374,500
160,190 314,928
398,193,149 411,440,778

91




KEMSa

e

Annual Reports and Financial Statements

For the year ended June 30, 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

20 a, Cash and Cash Equivalents

PETTY CASH

NBK - OPERATIONS

WORLD BANK E.A LAB PROJECT

NBE DISTRIBUTION

KCB DRUGS

KCB DISTRIBUTION

CHA

CO-OP - MEDICAL GRANTS

CO-0F BANK GF OPERATIONS (KSH)
CO-OP BANK GF OPERATIONS (UsD)
COOP BANK GF ATM R4P1 (USDY)

CO0OP BANK GF ATM RB5P1 (USD)

CO-OP BANK GF ATM R (USD)

COOP BANK GF ATM R4P2 (USD)

CO-OF BANK GF ATM R5P2 (USD)

CO-OF BANK GF ATM R7P

CO-OP BANK GF ATM R4P2

CO-OP BANK GF ATM R5P1

COOPF BANK GF ATM Re (K5H)

CO-0OPF BANK GF ATM R7P1

WORLD BANK HS5I' NON POOLED
WORLD BANK H55F' POOLED PROJECT

S50 CO-0OF BANK

S50 EQUITY BANK

KEMSA EQUITY WAREHOUSE CONSTRUCTION PROJECT
KEMSA EQUITY BANK OPERATIONS (K5H)
KEMSA EQUITY BANK OFERATIONS (USD)
MPESA BULK PAYMENT

Total cash and cash equivalents

FY 2020-X021

Kshs
1
812,741
18,843,438
70432
412,412 454
1.1
262,789,312
1,243,065,882
bb,bb3,526
339,857,500
1,920,371
1,959,665
125,683
9760
12373
7082339
99
1,064 586
1,029.785
4,195,195
174,107
400,450,859
1,351,267 598
3,237,732, 786
1.077,171,295
1,057 647
43558621
1,467
B,113 968,990

2019-2020

Kshs
22 559
f,371,491
24,065,065
Of,067Y
360,731,564
2412
1,240,139,032
1,615,789,011
08,646,638
186,199,163
1,915,053
1,943,211
131,805
6,658
29,768
702,704
A5
1,065,051
1025419
4,181,004
177 679
38,047 575
1, 100,000,904
4,799, 287,198
579,863,438
36,777,924
138,932 065
5

10,453,522, 589
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20 {a) Cash and Cash Equivalents

FY 2020-2021 2009-2020
Kshs Kahs
Current acoounds 8.113,4988,950 101,453, 490, k30
Cash on Hamd and On Transtt {1 Ei,ni
Total cash and cash equivalents 8,113,988,990 10,453,522,589
21, Recvivables from Exchange Transactions
FY 2020-2021 20749-2020
Kshs Kahs
Triedie Debtorrs «Receivable S,7a0,958,122 G, 4835 414,850
| Supplier prepayment 106,542,572 121,774,697
Total receivables from mh&ng@ ransactions 5,803, 800, b5d i,605, 169, 547
122, Receivables from Mon Exchange Transactions
FY 2020-2021 29-2030
Eshs Kb
Oither Debtors = Uninvoiced Bocedvables - 523,505,924
Travel Imprest Debtors X3 B0z 2
Stath Ssalary Advances Debiors 186,708 186,713
Standing lnprest Debior 23700 i
Stalf Medical Advances 2,196,128 2412664
Staff Accountable Imprest 200,000 ‘o
Rent Deposil . 226383
Interest Keocivable 1.BILTTS -
Tuotal receivables from non exchange iransactions 44H 114 SZR.3T1.687
23, Inventories |
FY 2020-2021 FY Z01%-2020
K=hs kahs
Medical Supplies-Fharmaceutical & Non Pharmaceutical Stocks 17554, 455,351 17,734, 238, 0
Consumable stores-Sationery FURETR XodT 407
Commumable stores-Boverapes & Oihiers 1,154,700 a3
Total inventories at the lower of cost and net realizable value 17.558,529,935 17,738, 279,406

Kl i.ﬁ?l,.ﬁmﬁ.ﬂﬁ'lr Corid=-T4 Commaedifies

Ot of stock value of khs 17554455351 the entily is holding Jrd party stocks valwed at ksl 7,063,985, 435 and
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24. Long Term Receivables from Non Exchange Transaclions

Losng-termm D prosi

Total long term receivables from non exchange ransactions

Kshs
FY 2020-3121 20 9=-H20
Kshs Kshs
53815430 48,515,430
CER IR RN 48,515,430

These are rental depogits paid for warehosses that the Authority has rented Lo store medical commodities

25 Trade and other pavables from exchange ransactions

I rade Credibors - BModwcal

Trade Creditors - Mot Invoiced Receipts
Trade Creditors -{'.Ip-,-r.:lﬁm'r::

Trade Creditors - DNstribution

Frade Creditors - Development Martner's Grants
Eent deposit’s - lenants

Withheld vat

Vat output - due

Withheld tax- consultancy

Withheld Tax - Bental Income

Sia |:I-|.'|J e Foruds Hetained

Tostal trade aind other payables from exchange transachions

FY 20120-221 NS00
Kehz Kehs
2 786, 573 Bib 2930241 847
2588017 504 2740577 1446
180,784,194 HOL590, 560
1128827 i
1322468 816 1,100,301, 588
2032 428 3052428
(1} BY |
o 64,174
i i
0 0
21,639 338 22441 620
715 3498 851 B, BT 649 362

goroermmieit faxes valied af 1.3 Biflion

Chiek of 702 Billion Habilitdes there ds a th'n'ﬁy that relates o COVITY supplies palued af 2.5 Biltion that laoe
been dettvensd  but not paid for since FY 20-21 , there is atso a Hability for balance of fusds neant to pay

26, Trade and other payables feom non exchange iransactions FY 2020-2021 2011920120
Kshs Kshs
MSSF PAY ABLE I -
PAYROLL CONTROL 5N
PAYE IMPREST PAYABLE 13, 30K}
THIRD PARTY LOAN RECOVERIES |
EMPLOYEE IMPREST PAYABLE (REFUNDS) 1,147
WITHHELD TAX-CONTRACTORS 1
EMPLOYEE PAYABLES 1,746,989
Tuskal Fa.}':ll'.llﬂ from mhangi.- tran=zactions 2761333 -
27. Payments Received in Advance
FY H2p-2021 2N 8-2020)
Kshs Kahs
Customer Prepayment 3025 877 (7R T, 124,573
Todal Prepaymeni 3025 877,078 704 104 47

These are funds received in advance by e Awtlority from costomers
[Up= e o medioal conmmed ibies,

Tike thie Ministry of Health for LIHC-Scale
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(28, Current Provisions o
! FY X20-2021 201 9-X20
| Kshs Kshs
{Balance Brought Forward 117 961,863 82 674 490
j.r"l.ddiu'::llil-'ll Prowisions 167 673,093 117 5] 863
Provision Litilized 1 {117 %61 863) (42 674,496)
Total provisions 167 673,093 117 961,863
29, Project Fund

FY 2020-2021 20159-2020

Kzhs Kshs

EAPHLNP Cash Balance 15 843 438 29 065 (65
Less: Cummulative bank interest eamed on EAFHLNF Account (11,383, 918
Audd: Interest refundable o DANIDA 13,2431
Total project fund 45,723 831 29,065,065
. Medical {'ummndir].' Fund

FY 2020-2021 200 %-2020

Kshs Kshs

Medical Commaodity Fund 83561100719 8,920 214, 7h8
Total medical commodity fund %.356,110,719 8920214, 768
31, Deferred income

FY 2020-2021 20059-X120
Public Contribution and donations (Current Portion recognized from Kshs Kshs
Donated Assets) 798,174,574 38,140,354
Total deferred income 798,174,974 58,146,334

to the supplier by the Global fund-at the National Treasury,

The Authority has recognized the absorption of the Grant from Glebal fund as work in progress on the funds paid
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The defermed imcoms: movemeat i & follws;
Public
International ~ (contribetions
Natiomal gmmmtnﬂfum[m and donations | Total
Balance brougt forvard | : WU
Addions WAL M
Transéers b Capetalfund | u
Transfers o income statemen | R 6,383 634
{Other ranster | | -
Balance carried forward . AR ALY ! T, 174504
32 KEMSA Capital
FY 2020-2021 2019-2020
Kshs Kshs
Balance at the end of the Financial Year 461 570,303 8,461,576, 303
Total KEMSA Capital 461576303 8461576303
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33a} Property, Plant and Equipment s a1 JUNE 2021
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A3 (b} Intangible Assets

CORIPLTER
BCHTW AN 1T A B IEoy ALS TOMTALS
R L] FERL R AW SRS Gkl AR TR 2NN
T, 60 [ER N [EEETERTE N, dda I, G000
= = AT UER, 18012
F
LN, RRETTN T BAZEEA S N HTAITETEND
(2 AV R10.00K
- THE I T, 11 (LA TS Bt
= o
%300 A e R ETRA R W (FEE AR TR (W FLNR A Fe R
[, e O
1504878, Fak 42
BINLAGS IS TN
[EE N FACLE ]

B BEb N, 71T &7

TR 11T 2T

(TN G TH, 1T A

Tl 18,0924

190 it A i L2 ATE B L0 VA TR, S0 AT A T
(T9A7,500,60)

IZAATI TR ¥23,437.7% V1743013451

10, 2k_aw 4 0 e T T WE 2L ML 044,04
R r i, Tl RO WS

o e 00,001 | 000,00 5,157,685, 566 30

1 11 3 152 (. ) W UGH AT &8 2T

1,55 2d6, TELTT
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33¢. Property, Plant and Equipment at Cost

If the frechold land, buildings and other assets were stated on the historical cost basis the amounts

would be as Follows:

N Cost | Accumulated NBY |
Depreciation |

| ==~ —1 Kshs | _ﬁ;-.ii';‘; = Kshs

Land 1,506,977, 026,37 | " 1,506,977,026.37 |

Buildings 103 686000 | 171,207.21817 | 1,132,459,250,62

| Plantand machinery | 21640227301 | 90,757,088.07 125,645, 184.04

I' Motor vehicles, mcluding motorcyeles | 283570450 | 155337,045.81 93,007,758.69

' Computers and related equipment

|72 rmer

CABA12,018.70

Office equipment, furniture, and fittings

=m = — — = —

3.Property, Plant and Equipment at Cost

99,264, (44,600

[ RIATBA0TSE

43,500.841.52

| 509,235,11227

55.793,199.08

2,940,243,195.27

Property plant and Equipment includes the following assets that are fully depreciated:

Mormal

e = i.'I'II'II.'IJ].

___ Costor depreciation
valuation = :‘.i'l-‘l.l-'g_l;!_

Plant and machinery 2 B 2

Motor u-rbuirlw.ﬁ:'hn.lingmur cycles 0 0
Computers and related q~quipmuﬁl_ = 17, 509,069.00 5,836,363.00
Office equipment, furniture and fittings 31 31
Total 17,509,122,00 17,509,122.00

< R = <....| ..
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35, Cash Generated from lﬁe?ﬁi:ins [
FY 2020-2021 2019-2020
- =k KShs ~ KShs

 Surplus for the year before tax 401,691,740 | 1,663,393,620
Adjusted for: - = - = - - -
Depreciation 117,830,125 161,179,098

| Gains and losses on disposal of assets - 943,875

| Working Capital adjustments - | = == = |
Decreasef{Increase) in Current Assets 1,445,089,6596 (8,234,224,923) .
Increasef{Decrease) in Current Liabilities | (3,927,571,098) 11,942,906, 788
Increasef(Decrease) in Deferred Income | 740,028,640 (8, 044,545)
Net cash flow from operating activities | (1,222,930,896) 5,526,153914

36, Financial Risk Management

The Authority's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity risks
and effects of changes in foreign currency. The Authority’s overall risk management programme
focuses on unpredictability of changes in the business enviroroment and secks to minimize the
potential adverse effect of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable levels of risk. The entity
does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that credit is only extended to customers
with an established credit history.

The Authority’s financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:

i} Credit risk
The entity has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to
pav amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits

with banks, as well as trade and other receivables and awvailable-for-sale financial
investments,
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["-'iﬂl'li.i!.’,l.."l'l.’-ll‘l'll assesaes the eredit i.lu-l'iﬂ' of each customer, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or
external assessment in accordance with limits set by the directors, The amounts presented in
the statement of financial position are net of allowances tor doubtful receivables, estimated
by the Authority’s management based on prior experience and their assessment of the current
CCONomic environment.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements representing the
Authority’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any
collateral obtained is made up as follows:

Credit risk Total ameunt]  Fully performing| Past due Impaired
hshs bus s hahs hshs)
As at 30 June 2011
Regenabies Fom excharge Iransachons 5452,199 510 | 489,551,996 4.362.647,514 (.00
Recenables fom non exchangs irmsactions 4420314 4,420,314 - 01,00
Bank bakinces B,113,%58,990 B,113,988,990 . (.00
Total 13,970,608.814 9,607,961,300 4362647514 (1000
As at 30 June 2020
Recenables Fom exchange ransactions 6,911,192 2462 520,947 4448.675,214 {1,008
Recenables fom non exchange transactions 533.3?].155?' 328,371,687 - (.00
Hank bakinces 10,433,522.589 |0,453,522,589 - {30
Tatal |7893,000.497 13444415203 448675174 .00}

The ageing, of accounts receivables that explain the Authority's exposure to credil risk as at 30" June
2021 was made up as follows:
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Trade Receivables:

FY 2020/2021 FY 2019/2020
-by up to 30 days 810,240,836 1,289,179,419
-by 31-60 days 320,891,317 726,636,908
-by 61-90 days 358,419,843 445,704,170
-Over 91 days 4,362,647 514 4,448 675,274
5,852,199,510 6,911,196,221

The board of directors sets the Authority's credit policies and objectives and lays down parameters
within which the various aspects of credit risk management are operated. The Authorily has an
established credit policy which stipulates the standard payment terms and condibions. However, in
specific cases especially when fransacting with Development partners, the Memorandum of
Understandings (MOUS) signed by both parties are used to define applicable credit terms. The credit
risk is low since the customers are primarily public institutions, development partners and faith based
organizations. The Managemoent has the responsibility of managing the Authority’s credit risk. The
carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum exposure to credit risk.,

i) Liquidity risk management
Litimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Authority’s directors, who have
built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Authority's

short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The entity manages
liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash flows,

The table below represents cash flows payable by the entity under non-derivative financial liabilities
by their remaiming contractual maturities at the reporting date, The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows.  Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant,

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date,
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=

Toelal

Development Partmers
Rind Deposits- Tenants
Stale Chevquee

Liquidity Risk -3 Days 31-50 Days Ower 90 Days

Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs
As at 30 Jume 2021
[racle o :f'ﬂi1|l.:"r I 6d, 213,725,132 03525267315 S0 7704 8T 5080 240,793,110
ctacibr Sl il 2588,017,506.00  2.588,017,506.00
Eeceipis

1,322 4B B16.37
3.032.427.50

21,639 335 (K

1322468 R16.37
3032427 .50

Kitentions = : 21,6349, 338.00
Customer Prepavments B0 27616500 E.":H&hl:lﬂ.ﬂl?-.-i-’?. AO25.877.078.49
Provisions 148,971, 1,82 - 18,701 986 0 167 673,0u2 83
Total 1,753,184,831.95 1,024.528.838.15 743123538218 10.208,949,052.28
As at 30 June 2020

I'rade i!il]mblws 2402, 180,955, 73 450,883, 5575 (0 78,167 878 852 301 1,232 407 85
Lantinare- ot fovoloed LTAZ 5774600 2742.577,146.00
Heceipis

T_'h'_'wlnpmmt Partners L AO0 301 587 .68 1,100,300 587 68
Rent Deposdits- Tenanis 3032 427 50 1032427 50
Stale Chegue . -
Ketentions - - 22441 60041 24162041
Customer Prepayments 6, TR0, 844,341 .34 456,967 7534 5641287836 750422497310
Provisdons 114,461, 86735, 0 - 3,500, RN, 117,961,863
Total 9347 487, 160.07 937,851,326,70  4,306,433,538.77 14,591,772,025.54

ifi) Market risk

The board has put in place an internal audil function to assist il in assessing the risk faced by the entity
on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its internal accounting and
operational controls.

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices and
foreign exchange rates which will affect the Authority’s meome or the value of 18 holding of fnancial
instruments, The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures
within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return. Owverall responsibility for managing
market risk rests with the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

The Finance Department 1s responsible for the development of a detatled risk management policies
{subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk Management Committee) and for the day to day
implementation of those policies.

There has been no change to the Authnrit}”ﬁ pxposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk.
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a) Foreign currency risk

The entity has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises through purchases of goods
and services that are done in correncies other than the local CUITency. The Authority’s policy 15 to
record transactions in foreign correncies ol the rate in effect at the date of the transaction. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange in effect

al the reporting date, All gains or losses on changes in curmency exchange rates are accounted for in
profitor loss. Consequently, the Authority’s exposure to exchange risk is minimal. In light of this, the
directors are of the opinion that any sensitivity analysis with respect to the foreign exchange exposure
would be un-precedent.

b} Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the Authority’s financial condition may be adversely affected as a
result of changes in interest rate levels, The Authority’s mterest rate nsk arises from bank deposits.
This exposes the entity to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate risk exposure arises mainly
from interest rate movements on the Authority’s deposits,

Management of interest rate risk

To manage the interest rate risk, management has endeavored to bank with institutions that offer
favorable interest rates. Interest from short term deposits is one of the significant sources of revenue
for the authority, The Authority's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to probability of reduction in finance income if interest rates were to go down significantly,
The average interest rate in the linancial year 2020/ 2021 was 8%.

Capital Risk Management

The objective of the entity’s capital risk management is to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as

a going concern. The entity capital structure comprises of the following funds:
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1 2020-2021 20192020

Khs Kshs

Revakation eserve H0A 18630456
Retaied canings BASLONTRY  RAISOR0

Capial serve BA6LSTO0 8461576,30]
Totalfunds 1809714752106 17,859,19,300.

I7 Contingenl Assets

The tollowing Assels which are in Financial Statements have Ownership disputes

) T [ wmaen ]
Kshs kshs
CONTINGENT ASSETS | '
EMBAEKAS]I GREEN SITE LE MO 21919 L 10,000,000 | FEn O
KAKAMEGA GREENSITE ALLOTMENT LETTER UO7s00000 | 7.500.000
209163AT11
KISUMU MUNICIPALITY BLOCK B/128 | 0 | 0
NYERI MUNICIPALITY / BLOCK 3/117 7500000 | 7.500.000
| Total ___ B o - T_Is,u_uu.nqm | B ] :@nn,uﬁ']

(i) EMBAKAS] GREEN SITE LR NO 21919

[n January 2019 Kenya Adr Ports Authority filed a complaint before the Mational Land Commission
seeking rovocation of several parcels of land excised from land parcel No. LR 21919 which is registered
in favor of Kenva Air Ports Autharity, Among those parcels of land include LE No, 28464 and 28465
which was Registered in favor of KEMSA Upon hearing the complaint, the National Land
Commission recommended revecation of inter alia KEMSA's title over LE No. 28404 and 258465 and
ssuance of a sublease mstead,

KEMSA instructed its lawyers to move to court and challenge the recommendations made by National
Land Commission. Judicial review proceedings were instituted before the Environment and Land
Court being Judicial Review application No. 91 of 2019 filed on 28t March, 2019, The matter is still in
court,
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[he Authority propaoses that the recommendations by MNational Land Commission be complied with
and negotiations with Kenya Airports Authority be embarked on for issuance of a sublease in favour
of KEMSA.

(ii} KAKAMEGA GREENSITE ALLOTMENT LETTER 209163/A11

KEMSA had earlier been allocated a parcel of land in Kakamega in October 2002 via Allotment letter
ref No. 209163/ All. Kakamega County government later developed a referral hospital on the land.
EEMSA has since sought for compensation and discussions are ongoing with the county govl of
Fakamega to hiave an alternative parcel of land identified and allocated to KEMSA.

iii) KISUMU MUNICIPALITY BLOCK B/128

KEMSA had earlior been issued with a parcel of land in Kisumu whose land reference number s
KISUMU MUNICIPALITY BLOCK B/ 128 by way of 99-year Lease from 012 October, 2005, The Lease
was issued to the Authority. However, it erroneously indicated that the Lease is issued in favour of
the Cabinet Secretary o the Treasury (as trustee for the Ministry of Health), a body corporate duly
established under the Cabinet to the Treasury Act (Cap 102) of the laws of Kenva. The Authority
instructed counsel to make an application to correct the error and have KEMSA registered as the
proprietor, The said counsel advised that on following up the issue with the lands registry in Kisuma,
it transpired that the said land is registered as above and is also registered in the name of another
individual and the matter s with the DCI (Frauds Unit)-Kiswmuo.

iv) NYERI MUNICIPALITY/BLOCK 3113

Part of KEMSA's Land in Nyeri Ref; Nyeri Municipality /Block 3/113 was grabbed by
a private developer. The matter has been reported to the Ethic and Anticorruption
Commission EACC

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Authority is 100% owned by the Government of Kenyva. The Authority’s main related parties are
the Government of Kenya - Ministry of Health and the County Governments, KEMSA's core business
is procurement, warehousing and distribution of medical supplies to public health facilities.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. During the year
the following transactions were carried oul with relaled parties.
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Related Party Transactions
20202021 2019/2020
Kshs Kshs

| Grants from the NMational Government 125,000,000 (53,239,996
Purchase of Electricity from KPLC 14,718,124 13,287 328
Purchase of Water from Gov't Service providers BYS, 798 1,014,536
'Fia]l.ﬂ.-.?F Midical Commaodities 1o Public Health 8,227,833, 780 10,581, 706,996
facilities
Board Expenses 17,662 305 10,954 944
Koy Management Compensation 73,287 915 61,821,217
TOTAL 5,454,400,922 11,322,025,017

49, DISCLOSURE ON I'PE MOVEMENT SCHEDULE

Disclosure on correction on PPE Movement Schedule

The Authority undertook 100% verification of assets in the FY 2020/2021 to ascertain the
physically available assets owned by the Authority. The exercise resulted to prior year
adjustment recommended by the Authority to be adjusted prospectively trom FY 2020/ 2021,

IPSAS 3 recommends retrospective correction of errors, however it provides tor limitations
of retrospective adjustment under paragraph 48 that “A prior period error shall be corrected bny
refrospective restuterment, excepl to the extent tat 1f 15 impracticable to determine either the period-
specific effects or the comulatioe effect of the error”. The errors herewith recorded by the Authority
relabed to d].*;pm;ﬂ[ﬁ dore i Pr&vinuﬁ years as "lots™ and revaluation done as batches under
some classes of assets and could not be attached to some specific asset tags in the register.
This has made the exercise impracticable to determine the specific assets from the asset
register that were already disposed and those that were revalued with new prices in the prior
years. The prior year's disposals of assets were Ph}'.‘ii[ﬂ“_‘f done, however not done on the
system/fixed as assets register. In addition, the items sold, as “lots” do not have records of
the assel tags disposed hence could not be removed from the asset register individually on
specific periods. In addition, assets disposed as lots, had been mixed with waste materials
and had been paid for as a whole, in such cases prices could not be separated and apportioned
to specific asset for proper disposal in the ERP/ Asset register.
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This necessitated prospective correction on the opening balances of the PPE movement
schedule and the opening balances of the Statement of Statement of Changes in Net Assets.

The Authority has since developed a fixed asset policy as internal control to guide fixed
management in the Authority. The Authority has further completed development of a robust
fixed Asset Module that will be used to record all movements of all fixed assets

Population Services Kenya donated two motor Vehicles to KEMSA alter completion of the Health
Communication and Marketing Project (HOM) funded by USAID that ended on May 2021.The
transfer was formalized through an agreement dated 250 March 2020 signed by the CEQ and Chief of
Party HCM Projectand the CEO KEMSA. The vehicles were donated on condition that KEMSA would
pay for the government taxes and levies required related to the transfer of r.m.rm-r!i'hip which included
customs duly since the vehicles were previously tax exempl The vehicles included a Toyota
Landcruiser Hardtop and a Toyota Hilux Double Cab pickup. The Authority paid the required taxes,
acquired ownership documents and recognized the vehicles in the asset register.

IPSAS 23 under paragraph 97 prescribes that "denations including goods in kind are measured af their far
valur as at the date of aoquisition which may be ascertained by reference fo an active market or by appmisal. An
appraisal of the value of an assel is noraally urndertaken by @ meniber of the valuation profession who Jolds e
recagrized amd relevant professional qualification’, For purposes of recognition of the Assets in the Fixed
Asset Register, the Authority recognized the value of donated Assets using the insurance valuation
report and the customs duty paid. The Authorily is organizing with the Ministry of Transport,
Infrastructure, Housing and Urban development through the Mechanical and Transport division for
the valuation of the Motor Vehicles as it awails the completion of transfer, re-registration and
valuation by the relevant ministry.

41 DISCLOSURE ON GLOBAL FUND GRANT

he Authority has commenced construction of the National Commaodity Storage Center, Project Ref
MNo: 1081101, Global fund is currently supporting the Authority on the project to the tune of Ksh. 973
Million as a grant through the National Treasury. The Authority has recognized the absorption of the
Grant from Global fund as work in progress on the funds that have been paid to the supplier by the
Global the supplier to the tune of KSh. 736,662,279 Million.

42, DISCLOSURE ON SALE OF COVID-19 COMMODITIES

The Cabinet approved the disposal of Covid-1% commodities at the prevailing market prices. There
has been material reduction on market prices of these commodities. Also approved was a write off of
Ksh 20 Billion against the commodities, however KEMSA had requested authority to write off Ksh
4.46 Billion which was estimated using the prevailing Market Prices as at June 2021,
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The Approval of Ksh 2.0 Billion may not be adequate to support the anticipated actual loss of the
commodities using current prevailing prices, KEMSA has wrilten back to the Principle Secretary
Ministry of Health for consideration. In addition, - KEMSA has engaged the Kenya National Bureau

of Statistics to conduct a market survey that will inform the current prevailing Market prices,
43. DISCLOSURE ON TAX DEMAND NOTICE

The Kenya Revenue Authority served KEMSA with a Demand Notice dated 17% Decembeer
2020 of a total amount of Kshs 461,568 874,

The demand notice is based on the Audited Financial statements for the financial years
2005/2M6, 2016/2017, 2017/ 2018 and 2018/2019, where a 30% Corporation tax has been
applied on some revenue items in the financial statements.

After receiving the demand notice, KEMSA and KRA scheduled for a meeting to reconcile
the assessment,

The first meeting between KEMSA and KRA was done in the month of May 2021 in a bid to
reconcile the Tax Obligation.

On 2204 September 2021, KEMSA received another assessment from KRA for Corporation
lax with a revised claim of Ksh, 1,541,576,106.48 and informed the Authority tor need a
working meeting at KEMSA premises to review and deliberate on the pending issues,

The KEMSA management after receiving the second assessment sought professional opinion
trom the Office of Auditor General on 200 January 2022, In consultation with the OAG the
Authority came up with reconciliation of corporation tax amounting of Ksh.274,553,747.69
which was calculated using the direct method. This amount is exclusive of penalty and
interest, However, OAG expressed a request of the final assessment.

From the meeting KEMSA decide to schedule a meeting with KEA and AOG held on 174
March 2022 where there was a lengthy discussion and the following outcomes were
considered.

1. KEMSA to deliberate and agree on a payment plan and advise KRA on first instalment
for Kshs 274M pavable on account

2. KEMSA to provide a schedule of buildings and machinery so that inspection can be
undertaken and agree on the appropriate date to undertake inspection;

3. KEMSA would consult KRA on exempt non-pharmaceuticals supplies and provide a list

to seek E;uiu,l.anu:u,

KEMSA to ensure that current taxes are remitted on time.

Oince reconciliation was completed, KEMSA would file amended returns.

KEMSA should provide to KRA, copies of the exemption certificates from the

development partners as claimed.

T
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7. Provide evidences of fee notes and remittances on account of withholding taxes for
consultancy and legal fees.

8. Reconcile schedules for all taxes as provided by KRA prior to final exit meeting,

9. Provide breakdown on amounts paid on account of repair to building and roads, If paid
to contractors then tax is withheld at 3%,

10. Both teams would engage and the final exit meeting would be held in a month’s time
where the final assessment would be presented,

From the rm.'uting held on 17% march 2022, KEMSA has prtwidmi all the r{_-q:juircq:l documents
and schedules to KRA and team is awaiting the final assessment from KRA.

Why Tax Obligation; The background of the non payment of Corporation Tax and VAT is
premised on KEMSA ACT SECTION PART III—FINANCIAL PROVISIONS which states
that;

Funds of the Authority.
(3} Uniess Treasury otherivise directs, the balance
of the funds of the Authority at the end of the financial year
shill be vetuwined for the purposes for wibch the Authoriby s
Established.

Whereas, the Authority has a current Tax Compliance Certificate issued on 06/07/ 2021, The
Management wishes to inform the Auditors of the following;

(1) In case the KRA decides to go ahead with the demand notice, KEMSA will not be able to
make the tax settlement due to cash flow challenges, and will require support from the
Exchequer through the Ministry of Health, The risk resulting from this demand is possible
aggression from KRA to progress to freeze KEMSA accounts, however the management
believes that the Authority has not reached this this stage.

(2) The VAT implication on the cost of medical commodities will be additional cost on the
current state of the Authority which will worsen the current Financial Health and worse
is increase medical cost for the entire country,

(3) No sufficient Budget in the recurrent Budget for FY 2021 /2022 for Corporation Tax and
VAT

The Authority has since written to the Ministry of Health requesting for intervention in
seeking waiver on the tax and penalties from The National Treasury.

110



KeEmsa

Annual Reports and Financial Statements .

For the year ended June 30, 2021

4. ULTIMATE AND HOLDING ENTITY

REMSA is a State Corporation under the Ministry of Health, [ts ulbmate parent is the Government of
Kenva.

45. CURRENCY

The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs)

111




—_—

K&mnsa ®

Reports and Financial Statements

For the year ended June 30, 2021

APPENDIX 1: PROGRESS ON FOLLOW UP OF AUDITOR RECOMMENDATIONS

The following is the summary of issues raised by the external auditor, and management comments that were provided to the auditor. We have
naminated focal persons to resolve the various issues as shown below with the associated time frame within which we expect the issues to be

resolved.
Timeframe:
Reterence
No, on the Status: (Put & dite
!:tl:n_ul Issue / Observations from Auditor | Management comments {Resolved / Not wwlten you
audit Resolved) expect the
Report isgne to bre
resolved)
KEMSA's business model is "PULL" system whare
counties, other public health, and Falth based
; : iae - facilities determine what they require and buy the
“':: Rcousacy i validlity of o oet same. After devolution, the entive public health
3 S SRR OF (e LOUR e 208 supply chain system moved from push to PULL and | Resolved
for thee year ended 30 June 2020 PPy ¥ P
e S L 3 some commesdities attracted Hite or no demand from
' these facilities. These commodities have over time
exhausted their shelf life and hence becoming
obsolete, | .
The Aathority had nine hundred The fsctors thal conbributed towards the increase
and twelve (912) employees as at in the number of staff are
a5 guf][z:lhlmm:mt of 1:;; frad L Implementation of the new  business
s Soutyscion BAT) abiiing I tin: model to support the devolved county

iz & il e plaleit. v health facilities.

estahiibment of five buncdred and | 2 Imp!-r.-mc'nl:al:inn of the Government s Big Four
| sevenby-one  (371)  officers, Moo | Agenda
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approval was availed to support
the ower establishment of 571
afficers

It was pbserved thal five (5) offcers on
secondment  from  the Mnistry  of
Health havwe served the organieation for
3. | a period of more than & years condrary
fo section 1333 (1) of the Mublic
Service  Commission Human
Resource Policy

The above two factors necessitated the engagement of
short term stafl on contract basis to enable KEMSA
eHectively respond ba the county
demandsworkload.,

The Authority haid varbier on vide its eter Ref, No.
KEMSA/ST/HR/20/02/19 dated 20th February
XN9, written to the Principal Secretary/MOH
requcsting the Mindstry io take back the seven [7)
sevonded staff. Out of the seven MOH emplovess,
only two (2) staff were recallid / tken back by the
Mlinestry, leaving behmd the other five (5)

| Mot resolved

[UNE 2022

The putsourced costs include amount of
Kshs 75,000,000 caphured vide journal
KEMSA-IV-6-19/20 and
Kshs 84,500,000 KEMSA-]V42-19/20
disclosed as accrual of distribution
4. expenses for te month of Jung 2019
June 2020 respectively. It could not
therefore be confirmed why the
Authority accrual the. expenditune
instead of capluring  the actual
irviicies.

The amount of Ksh. 75Million was an estirnated cost of
distributing commiodities for the month of June 2019
This was arrivedd at based on the Sappliers’ staterment
as of 3 June 201% In the vear under review, [V.6-
19 20 wias o reversal of the acorual done in Py 2018/ 19
since the actual invoices were expected to be received
within the vear 2019/2020. As demonstrated in the
attached schedule, there was no significant variance
bistwenen the [% and tetal value of the invodces. For the
moaith of June 2020 dstribo Hon servioes wete invobced
after end of FY 2009/ 20, henoe necesitabing an acorual
for the expenditune in the month of June 2030 The [V-
42-19,/20 of Ksh. 84.5Million was an estimabed cost of
distributing commaodities for the month of June 2000,
This was arrived at based on the Suppliers” stabement
as of 30th June 2020. there was no significant variance
between the W and total valoe of the invoices

Eesolved
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(1]

The Authority entered mto a contract |
agreement with a Courier Services
Company on 24 September 20016 for
prowision of courier services o health
facilities countrywide. However, il was
tobec] that From Agpril 29 o September
24, the firm wias overpaid

Kshs. 19,352 250 and the amount had
not been recovered as at 30 June 2020,

Receivables from exchange
bransactions balance of

Eihs 6,601,968 778 as disclosed at
fiote 1R to the financial statements
includes |

This mssue is under investigation and awaiting the
cutcomse, for further action, Payments of the supplier's
pending invokes relating to the supplier are on hold
until conclusion of the matter,

ot resolved

We concur with your observation that as at 30h
Jue 2020, The County Governments owed KEMSA
a total outstanding debt of Ksh. 2,848,869 46667,

& receivables bolaling Kshe. 4,974, %1 We wish to inform you that as at 250 March 2021, | Not resolved

317 comprising of Counties Kshs. | KEMSA has collected a total of Ksh. 2234 Billion
ZE48,869. 440 and the Ministry of | from the counties against the debts cutstanding as
Huealth Kshs 2,125 491,871 that have | at 30% June 2020,
been outstanding for more than
twelve (12) months and whose |
recovery is doubtful
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Inciuded in inventories balance
of Kshs. 16057902180 as at 30
June 2020 is pharmaceutical and
non-pharmaceutical stocks balance
of Fxhs 16,053 860,980 which
includes shocks o
Kshs 8022 512318 in respect of
KEMSA capital stocks that also
include COVID 19 stock
amounting to Kshs, 2,264,047 646,
It was however noted that the
Authority  procured COVID items
amounting  to  Kshs. 7632065588
during the year under review.
However, analysis and review of
store records revedled that stocks
pmounting o Kshs 401,912,648
were lssued and stock balances of
COVID 19 lems as ab 30 June 20320
Fashs, 2,204, 047 oedin
compared ko the expected balance of
Kshs, 7, 230,152,940,

We wish to clarify that value of procurement of
CENVTEY 19 ftems was Ksh, 7,632,968 223 53 and not
Kshs, 7,632,065,588 as captured in the query, As at
A0 Tame 2020 the value of COVID 19 stocks stood at
Kgh 573640516333 Glicky worth Kxh
18965 563,060 .20 had been isauaed oot of the nitial
procurement of Ksh, 763296822353, However,
only stocks valued at Ksho 3,959,375,534.75 were
captared in the stock ke valuation of Ksh
16,053 860,980 leaving out a balance of Ksh
1,777 029,628,558,
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As previously reported, the
property, plant and equipment
balance of Kshsp 341,530, 44 as at
30 June 2020 includes Tand at a cost
of Kshs,1,786,9%7, 2710 which
includes various parcels of land
spriad across the country amnd
valued at  Eshs 158,000,000 for
which the Authority does not
possess ownership documents.

Board has however engaped Prionty Management
Limited. {Convevance experts) and KTK Advocates o
handle the issué of realization of the titles deeds and is
follewing up on updates on ssuance of tite documents
from the respective lands regstries,

EEMSA does not possess documents o facilitate
processing of registration of the Meru land measuring 0.3
Has in its favour. The Authority has also realiasd that the
wseer of the sulgect parcel of land has been converted from
establishonent of medical stores to establshment of a
stadium heree it 8 nol foresesable that KEMSA will
acopuine tithe documents in respect of the land.

Mot resolved

June 2022
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The property, plamt and equipment

balance of Eshs6, 341,530,304 includes
Q mator vehicles nel book vabee of
kshs B0 ATZAE which include four (4)
vehicles with a nel book wvaloe of
Rshs 410083 that are owned by the
Mational Gevermiment,

Included in the work in progress
balance of Kshs. 1247 756,581 are
wo  contracts  for  proposed
refurbishment of Mombasa
and Kisumu warehouses
Contract Mo KEMSA/RT24-
20 18-201%9, Mombasa
Warehouse and KEMSA /RT1-
20 18-2019, Kisumu warehouse
amounting to  Kshs 26458 460
and 3667130 respectively
which were awarded through
restricted tender on grounds of
urgency on 13 February 2019

[t

Work was o be completed on or

EEMSA hid requested for transfer of ownership from
the Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Health, copy of the
Tt mttachsd (A ppendic 2 = Copy of birtter o Ministry
of Health requesting bo brovesfer of GK motor veliicles to
KEMSA and letter from MOH recalling 2 drivers amd a
veficle registretion monler GK %608),

Ihe vshicle registration number GE 9608 was physically
released to the Minstry as soon as the request was
moeived. We acknowledge that no formal release letter
was provided to Finance Department in order make
adjustments in the Asset Regrister,

Mot resolved

30 June 2022

Restricted tendering was not used because the works
were urgent as the method that would have been
applicable in case of urgency is Direct Procurement.
Howewver, the choice of Restricted Tendering method
wias in line with Section 102 (1) (b} of the Public
Procurement and Asset Disposal Act 2015 which
envisaged that below some threshold it would not be
prudent to use the Open Tender method iF the cost
and time involved in processing the tender was
disproportionate o the wvalue of the bender,
Regulations 2006 did not set thee threshold and left it
al the discretion of Procuring Entities to determine the
threshold below which o use this provision of the
Act. It was KEMSA's considered opinion that the
vilug of the tendiers sabisfied provisions of Sechion 102
(13 (b) of the Act Indeed Regulation 2020 have set the

Mot Resolved
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before 30 April 2019. However,
by the Hme of the audit in
Januwary 2021, work had mot
been completed althoush the
contract period had lapsed.

threshold under which this provision can be used at
Ksh 30 million.

Trade and other pavables from
exchange transactions  balance  of
Kshs 6,879, 649,362 as at 30 June 2020
inchades long outstanding
operation creditors of Kshs 36, 227, 940
that have been outstanding for a long

Alliance  Technologies Lid  after  the
termination of the contract existing bebween
KEMSA and Alllance Technologies Lid, due
to failure to meet obligations under the
contract. Allfance Technologies sought legal
redress and the case s still ongoing, and as
stated in the Memorandum of Appearance,

Mot Resalved

Partially resolved

Pending Court
decision

June, 2022

s lved

1 period of @me. Further, the trade and civil suit Mo, 87, KEMSA has retained the
other  pavables  from  exchange amount until the case is decided.
tansaction  balance  includes  long 2 long outstanding operation  creditors  of
outstanding  suppliers'  funds Kshs 36,227.940.  Awaiting resolution of the
retained balance of Kshs 22,441,620 pending bills incurred durtng operation of the
ot of which Kshe 100977 837 15 dated consortium. The MNational Treasury-Global
1 July 2072 Fund office s currently processing  the

outstanding pending bills
It was realized that third party funds ie. funds held on

Note 28 o the financial statements | behalf USATD for payment of suppliers and un-spent
reflects medical commodity fund AlE's funds received had boen omitted in the analysis.
balance of Kshs723A37543 as at | We wish to confirm that the balance of the Medical

12 30 June X0 comprising of third- | Commaodity Fund as at 3% June N20 was Ksh
party stocks halance aof | 3920214768 39 The breakdown is as follows;
Kshs 7,222 525 065 apd Hll-'l‘l"d.: 1. Third Party Stocks -Ksh, £ 031,348 16
funds account balance of and 3 Furds Held On Bohalf Usaid Eor Payment OF
Kshs 17,311,578, However, Suppliers - Ksh. 55,383,691.94
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supporting documents nd
schedules for the two balances were
not availkesd  for  audit  review
Further it was noted that third-
party stocks balance oif
Kshs 7222525965 differ with the
figure of third-party mwventory
reflected 1 the financial statements
supporting  schidule  balance  of
Kshs 8 0] H 0661 resultmg N
unexplained VAR af
Kshs B8 822 606, Consequently, the
accuracy and validity of the medical
r.11|'r|m.-e!~|.||l'_|.' Fuirich ulague o
Kshs 7. 239857543 as at 30 June 2020
could not be confirmed,

3. Unbpent  Aies Fumnds Feceived -Ksh
E16,170.837 30

4 Glebal Fumds  Account Balances  Ksh
17.311,578.15

SIgNatUre. .. ..o cossssssnvsnse

Terry Kiunge Ramadhani
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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APPENDIX 2: PROJECTS IMPLEMENTED BY THE STATE CORPORATION/SAGA FUNDED BY

DEVELOPMENT PARTNERS
| Project tithe Project Number Donor Period/ duration " Donaor | Separabe donor - Consolidated  in |
commilment reporting required as | these financial
per the donor | stalements
agrecment (YesM™o)
YesMNao)
EAST AFRICA | KE-4732 WORELD " Start: July 05 2010
PUBLIC HEALTH BANK
YES YES
METWORKIMNCG
PROTECT End: March 31,2020
L — |
USAID KEMSA MOTP |
PEROGRAM A LA .
ATD-ET5-C-T5-ME | USATD Start: October 14 205
End : 30 December MO YES
| 220
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APPENDIX 3: INTER-ENTITY TRANSFERS

Trammfer from & Inl'nlrr dr];l-mnn amid ﬂErrq'lflu (L IRE T
RECURKEMT GGHANT
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Mlnistry of Heakly

125, (00,0000
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o oL s

125, C0H), D01, 6

Felmistry of Hisalth

Mlnimtry of FHoalily

Minisry of Fleald
I e 1, 501, DK, DK, 06 T G LR
¥R Ina s e T, 0N, ChORC] (M2 TR A5 00
T R U oM JOKT AN DR [HE AR R 30 D)
T/ e i e i Jik, 10 1 1S SN2 1300
783000 i TRLITAANLOD | 195,213, 087,00
T8I0 HI‘I‘ILI\T}I ol Dlealihy 0,55 0y UL AT ARG
sy Selipdsrry ol 1 enlity - i R e R
A i Hlasakih
7/13,/2090 —r ' & HBE 451 00 245,000, 000,00
L [err e | e Y0 P & 03% 600 A 3256 350 00
13,7300 Blinastry of Heoallh S ATLIIGON | L75R6RIITH.ON
1373 F B0 Folirastry o | Bealdib 13 A0 B M S 0N, 00 0
AFIEAanT i s U8 AHA, THHG HF &G CHHE OORT, 0
3712208 Mlirdatry of Healih 100, 285, 55600 A5 0, D0, (0
LR TS | IMH“IHT v Hisalth A0& 0 TN SHOLEHME, CKHD XD
iFFadinm I'r!l.muLu vl Haalil 1,232 377 A7 237, FIHE D1 D0
3,0, 3071 Blirsiskry of Hsalth 59 W0, THHD, D0 I E75 3650
5100 Mimbstry of Healih 385 200,00 9 SR, 54, (N0
&AWz 1fl-'l.l.l':ﬂl'.l':|' i HMealib 1 BTG, (MG SO0 00, 0,00
S1aanm htuu:nl ol Healith 1, 200 TR0 D0 3 0 DHE, DT, D
52071 Bvbinmtry of Healih EE MR 4055 65 1 00, CHHY, OhTHT D3
& F1,4200 {itiniabry of Healib 108, 15344525 JE1, D0, 010 )
{ntinstry of Hsalih 1K1, B0, DOGL T
Mht':lrr:,- o Hisalithy 2582 A3 RS AL
Boltinhstry of Hsalk L ENE, 57 hSSURIF
LN AT RAT A0
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